
I 

CITY Of 

J~ ~ 
lJ~ 

AGENDA 
RIO DELL PLANNING COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING - 6:30 P.M 
TUESDAY, AUGUST 23,2016 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

675 WILDWOOD AVENUE, RIO DELL 

WELCOME . .. By your presence in the City Council Chambers, you are participating in the 
process of representative government. Copies of this agenda, staff reports and other material 
available to the Commission are available at the City Clerk's office in City Hall, 675 Wildwood 
Avenue. Your City Government welcomes your interest and hopes you will attend and 
participate in Rio Dell Planning Commission meetings often. 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

B. ROLLCALL 

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

D. CEREMONIAL MATTERS 

1) 2016/0823.01 - Swearing in of Sandy Blakely as Alternate Planning Commissioner 
for a Three (3) Year Term Ending 12/31/19 

E. CONSENT CALENDAR 

1) 2016/0823.02 - Approve Minutes of the April 12, 2016 Special Meeting (ACTION) 1 

F. PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 

This time is for persons who wish to address the Commission on any matter not on this 
agenda and over which the Commission has jurisdiction. As such, a dialogue with the 
Commission or staff is not intended. Items requiring Commission action not listed on this 
agenda may be placed on the next regular agenda for consideration if the Commission directs, 
unless a finding is made by at least 213rds of the Commission that the item came up after the 
agenda was posted and is of an urgency nature requiring immediate action. Please limit 
comments to a maximum of 3 minutes. 

G. SCHEDULED MATTERS/PUBLIC HEARINGS/STUDY SESSIONS 

1) 2016/0816.03 - Adopt Resolution No. PC 097-2016 Recommending the City Council 
Amend Section 17.40 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC) to 
Accurately Reflect the Referenced Sections 
(DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION) 15 



.' 

2) 2016/0823.04 - Adopt Resolution No. PC 098-2016 Approving Lot Line Adjustment for 
Stephen Adams, APN No's. 052-202-009 and 052-202-010, LLA 16-01 
(DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION) 20 

3) 2016/0823.05 - Adopt Resolution No. PC 099-2016 Recommending the City Council 
Amend Section 17.30.020, Accessory Uses and Buildings of the Rio 
Dell Municipal Code (RDMC) to (1) Establish Maximum Building Heights 
and Floor Areas Based on Size of Parcel and to Allow for Exceptions 
by the Planning Commission when Certain Findings Can be Made; 
and (2) Establish Regulations Regarding Cargo Containers 
(DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION) 41 

4) 2016/0823.06 - Ordinance No. 348-2016 Establishing Commercial Medical Cannabis 
Land Use Regulations, Section 17.30.195 of the Rio Dell Municipal 
Code (RDMC) (RECEIVE & FILE) 49 

H. ADJOURNMENT 

In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), if you need 
special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the Office 
of the City Clerk at (707) 764-3532. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting 
will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to assure accessibility 
to the meeting. 

The next Regular Planning Commission meeting is scheduled for 
Tuesday, September 27,2016 at 6:30 p.m. 



CITY OF RIO DELL 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
SPECIAL MEETING 
APRIL 12, 2016 

A special meeting of the Rio Dell Planning Commission was called to order at 
6:30 p.m. by Commissioner Long. 

Present were Commissioners Long, Marks and Woodall. Absent were 
Commissioners Angeloff and Millington. 

Others present were Community Development Director Caldwell and City Clerk 
Dunham. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

Motion was made by MarksIWoodall to approve the consent calendar including 
approval of minutes of the March 8, 2016 special meeting and approval of 
minutes of the March 22, 2016 regular meeting. Motion carried 3-0. 

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 

Richard Lemon addressed the Commission on the proposed marijuana 
regulations and presented a stick with markings indicating the strength of 
marijuana in the 1960's and the strength now; it showed marijuana 6 times 
stronger today than in the 1960's. He commented that according to the Federal 
Drug Administration (FDA) it is 20-30 times stronger. He expressed concern 
about children and said the legislation approving the cultivation and distribution of 
medical marijuana will likely pass for anyone over the age of 21 . He said as a 
former high school teacher, about one-third of his students at that time admitted 
to using marijuana. He stated that the use is even more prevalent among high 
school and college students today. 

He added that his neurologist explained to him how the brain develops in stages 
and said if a young person uses marijuana it can strongly influence the way the 
brain develops. He said the worst of it is that a woman during child bearing years 
using marijuana who gives birth can have a child with a brain that is 10% smaller 
than normal. 

He said he is glad to see the City proposing regulations on edibles and said his 
sister lives in Colorado Springs and where she lives they are putting marijuana in 
brownies, ice cream, and suckers to name a few and like guns, edibles are not 

1 



PLANNING COMMISSION 
APRIL 12, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 2 

required to be locked up. As a result. he said kids get into the edibles and end 
up in the hospital or worse. 

SPECIAL MEETING MAnERS 

Recommendations on Testing Laboratories and Dispensaries/Consideration of 
Draft Commercial Medical Marijuana Land Use Ordinance (CMMLUOl. Section 
17.30.1950tTitie 17 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC) 
Community Development Director Caldwell provided a staff report and said as 
the Commission is aware; this meeting is the fifth in a series of meetings 
regarding the discussion of the Medical Marijuana Land Use Ordinance 
(MMLUO). He said at this meeting the Planning Commission will be discussing 
Testing Laboratories and Dispensaries including: Testing Licenses; Type 10 
Dispensary Licenses; and Type 10A Dispensary Licenses. 

Testing Laboratories 

Community Development Director Caldwell said staff is recommending that 
testing laboratories be conditionally permitted in the Industrial Commercial (IC). 
Town Center (TC). Neighborhood Center (NC). and Community Commercial 
(CC) designations subject to a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) and performance 
standards deemed appropriate by the Planning Commission and/or the City 
Council. 

He noted that labs other than those testing cannabis are currently principally 
permitted uses in all of the City's commercial zoning districts. 

Community Development Director Caldwell 
Dispensaries-Recommended Performance 
Regulations. 

presented a 
Standards 

handout on 
and State 

He said one of the concerns expressed regarding testing laboratories is what 
happens to the product once it is tested and how much product is kept on site. 
He explained that testing of cannabis only requires a small amount of product 
and the rest is put into a solvent which makes it useless. 

Commissioner Long asked for clarification on how the lab acquires the cannabis 
for testing. 

2 



PLANNING COMMISSION 
APRIL 12, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 3 

Community Development Director Caldwell explained a lab technician goes to 
the site and takes random samples (usually 1-3 grams) then takes it back to the 
lab for testing. 

Gordon Griswold and Michelle Malaret, Co-Owners of Leaf Detective, a testing 
laboratory in the Bay Area, were present to address the Commission on cannabis 
testing labs. 

Gordon Griswold began by stating that they would like the opportunity to 
partner with the City to make sure products are safe. He said there were seven 
(7) dispensaries in Colorado where they found pesticides in the cannabis and 
also in Washington there was a lab that was passing tests on cannabis with 
pesticides. He said he has no problem telling the cultivator that they have 
pesticides in their cannabis and that he will not endanger his integrity or the 
integrity of his company by doing that. 

He said they have been working with a local realtor and looking for potential 
locations to establish a lab for the past six (6) weeks and Rio Dell being part of 
Humboldt County, is on the leading edge regarding the advancement of cannabis 
and that he sees the City as the leader and a jurisdiction that is taking a logical 
approach with regard to regulations. 

He noted that Oregon and Washington have very stringent requirements which 
make it difficult to do business as a cultivator or testing laboratory. 

He added that Rio Dell is taking a very pragmatic approach and he likes what he 
sees. 

Commissioner Marks asked if California has implemented testing requirements 
for cannabis. 

Staff commented that there are some requirements in place but the complete 
requirements are evolving. 

Michelle Malaret commented that they are looking at two potential locations for 
establishing a testing lab; 541 Wildwood Ave .• and 70 Wildwood Ave. She 
indicated that they have already obtained approval by the Humboldt County 
Health Department. Alcohol & Beverage Control (ABC). as well as the property 
owners. 

3 



PLANNING COMMISSION 
APRIL 12, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 4 

She said as far as odors, all testing occurs under a filtered fume hood similar to a 
home kitchen hood. 

Richard Lemon asked if they test for THC and if there is a limit. 

Michelle Malaret said they do test the level of THC but there is no limit as to the 
amount contained in the sample. 

Gordon Griswold stated that in the 1960's and 1970's, the average level of THC 
was 1-3%; today the average is around 16% although he has seen it as high as 
27%. 

Commissioner Long said because of the required chain of custody, he 
understood a lab technician would go to the cultivation site and take random 
samples. 

Michelle Malaret explained the regulations state that a transporter must be 
involved and they bring it back to the testing lab so there is no direct contact 
between the cultivator and the lab. She noted that the regulations vary between 
states and she doesn't know how California will develop its rules. 

She commented that their preference is not to have large amounts of product on 
site at anyone time. She said with regard to environmental concerns, their 
testing materials never go into the sewer system and they even use bottled water 
for testing. The entire sample is put into solvent and becomes contaminated; 
that along with any waste such as paper towels are disposed of at a hazardous 
waste site. She noted that she has already talked to Humboldt Waste 
Management Authority (HWMA) and they are set up to handle the waste 
products. 

Michelle Malaret held up a tea bag representing 2.5 grams of tea and said they 
only ask for one (1) gram of cannabis for each test. The point she was making is 
that a very small amount of cannabis is required for testing so there are no odors 
or people trying to break in to steal it. She said that any cannabis not tested by 
the end of the day is locked up in a metal cabinet; although it is unlikely they 
would have more than 10-15 grams at the end of any given day. 

As far as traffic, they only expect 1-2 customers at any time and that it takes 
each customer approximately 5-10 minutes to complete the required forms. She 

4 



PLANNING COMMISSION 
APRIL 12, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 5 

noted that the reason they would like to establish a testing lab in the downtown is 
to attract customers and invigorate the economy. 

Commissioner Marks asked if part of their testing is to measure the amount of 
residue that is removed during the extraction process. 

Michelle Malaret stated that they currently are not testing residual solids at their 
facility. 

Gordon Griswold noted that the equipment required to test residual solids is 
extremely expensive; estimated at around $100,000. 

Gordon Johnson asked how many employees would be required to operate a 
testing lab in Rio Dell. 

Gordon Griswold said initially there would be two (2) people running the lab but 
as business picks up there could be additional employees. He noted their normal 
turnaround time for tests is 24 hours whereas; some labs take 1-2 weeks or 
longer to complete tests. 

Gordon Johnson asked what they charge for testing. 

Michelle Malaret said they charge $80 for a potency test and to test everything 
including mold and pesticides it's between $210 and $250. 

Commissioner Woodall questioned the hours of operation. 

Michelle Malaret said they were proposing to be open from 11 a.m. to 7 p.m. 
However; the cafe at 70 Wildwood Ave. is open from 12 noon to 8 p.m. so they 
could adjust their hours to accommodate those hours of operation. 

Staff drew the Commission's attention to the proposed Performance Standards 
for Testing Laboratories and recommended a small revision to remove the City 
Manager and include the Planning Commission as the approval authority related 
to security systems. He said he should have made the correction prior to 
presenting it to the Commission. 

Don Ashley from Digipath Labs in Las Vegas, NV was also present to address 
the Commission regarding testing laboratories. He provided a handout that 

5 



PLANNING COMMISSION 
APRIL 12, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 6 

identified 22 tests they perform including the step by step process from beginning 
to end. 

He pointed out that Las Vegas regulations for testing are the most stringent from 
anywhere else and their goal is to partner with growers to provide accurate, safe 
and fast test results. He said California doesn't ask for anything even close to 
what Las Vegas requires but thinks it will eventually come to that. 

He said they also test the potency of edibles and sometimes the residual 
solvents. He noted that through chemo-profiling they can extract the strain and 
he believes patients should understand what they are ingesting in their body. 

He commented that they are currently looking at the Eel River Industrial Park as 
a potential site for a testing laboratory and provided a conceptual drawing of a 
2,500 sq. ft. facility with an additional 2,500 sq. ft. for future growth. 

An unidentified person in the audience said it is good to see people showing 
interest from other places but he has lived in Humboldt County all his life and this 
is a big industry. One of the big concerns is that jobs are generated for local 
citizens. He asked how the Planning Commission is going to make sure this 
facility will generate local jobs. 

Commissioner Long explained that who or how many people they employ is 
beyond the jurisdiction of the Planning Commission. 

Don Ashley noted that they would be hiring local people and they actually went 
to Humboldt State University and talked to approximately 50 people. He said he 
can't really implant people here, as Humboldt County has its own set of 
philosophies on day-to-day life and is very unique. 

Discussion continued regarding whether there should be a limit on the number of 
testing labs and if the community could support two (2) labs. 

Community Development Director Caldwell said being within "Emerald Triangle" 
Rio Dell could absolutely support two (2) testing labs. 

James Cortazar commented that he would like to see the market dictate the 
number of cannabis related businesses in Rio Dell and that it would be a great 
idea to allow a wide range of different cultivators and producers which is why so 

6 



PLANNING COMMISSION 
APRIL 12, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 7 

many people come to Humboldt County; for the wide variety of cannabis strains. 

Community Development Director Caldwell stated that the Planning Commission 
has the authority to limit the number of dispensaries in the City but doesn't 
believe the State has established a limit. He said they have however; put a limit 
on the number of large commercial cultivators and on the volatile extraction 
process. 

He said every application in the City of Rio Dell must first obtain a State license 
before they can begin any business activity in the City although it's his 
understanding the State will give preference to applicants that have already 
obtained local approval. 

Commissioner Woodall referred to the staff report under Dispensary; General, 
Type 10 where it stated that only one retail site is allowed and no other licenses 
are allowed under the Type 10 license. 

Staff explained that under a Type 10 license it only covers the dispensary and 
under a Type 10A license the dispensary can actually have cultivation and 
manufacturing operations within the dispensary. He said what it means is that 
the operator can only hold one license. 

Commissioner Marks referred to an article in the Times-Standard comparing 
Humboldt County to Colorado and comments regarding multiple licenses and 
suggested starting off with one (1) dispensary since the City had complaints with 
the smoke shop. Provided it doesn't create an element the City doesn't like, that 
restriction could then be lifted. 

Community Development Director Caldwell suggested the Commission complete 
the discussion on testing laboratories before getting into other subjects. He 
reviewed staff's recommended action and asked for a straw vote of the 
Commission regarding recommending approval by the City Council on the 
regulations for testing laboratories as proposed. 

The three Commissioners present agreed with the recommended action. 

Dean Smither commented that at the last meeting there was discussion on 
manufacturing provisions and someone proposed the construction of a 10,000 
sq. ft. facility at the Eel River Industrial Park. He said now there is an additional 

7 



PLANNING COMMISSION 
APRIL 12, 2016 MINUTES 
PageS 

proposal for a 5,000 sq. ft. testing facility. He questioned the Cal-Trans 
requirement for a traffic study for any development over 10,000 sq. ft . 

Community Development Director Caldwell said that staff was in contact with 
CalTrans and learned that improvements may not necessarily be required as a 
result of the traffic study. He pointed out that Dean Smither may be able to turn 
in plans and construct a facility however; there would be larger hurdles to 
construct a facility at the Industrial Park. 

Next was review and discussion of the Performance Standards for Dispensaries. 

Community Development Director Caldwell stated that staff is only proposing that 
Type 10 Dispensaries be allowed at this time unless the Commission would like 
to recommend Type 10A Dispensaries as well. He said staff is recommending 
that dispensaries be conditionally permitted in the Town Center (TC) subject to a 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP), State regulations, recommended performance 
standards and conditions and limitations deemed appropriate by the Planning 
Commission and/or City Council. 

He continued with review of the recommended performance standards in addition 
to the State requirements and said between the State's requirements and the 
City's performance standards; he feels everything will be adequately addressed 
with regard to dispensaries. 

He pointed out that the Commission has options with regard the number of 
dispensaries allowed and said they could limit it to one (1) dispensary at first and 
solicit for RFP's to determine which applicant to select; or as James Cortazar 
suggested, let the market determine the number of dispensaries. 

Commissioner Marks expressed concern about laws changing where edibles 
become a food item and cottage industries making edibles without complying 
with all of the labeling requirements. She said to keep in mind that they are not 
held to the same standards as someone that has 100 employees. 

David Bridge commented that the State is developing provisions for Cottage 
Industry licenses and that it is being talked about at the County level. 

8 



PLANNING COMMISSION 
APRIL 12, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 9 

Community Development Director Caldwell pointed out that Cottage Food 
Industries must be approved by the County Department of Environmental Health 
before the City can issue a license. 

Dean Smither commented that dispensaries will be subject to a Conditional Use 
Permit and if they are not complying with the conditions, the City can revoke it. 
He said taking marijuana out of the equation, there are no regulations on the 
number of pharmacies the City allows. He agreed that the City should let the 
market dictate how many dispensaries there are and as far as the RFP process, 
a business could look great on paper but it doesn't necessarily mean they can 
operate a good business. 

Commissioner Marks said her concern is that there will be loitering around 
dispensaries like the smoke shop and with a limited police force it may be difficult 
to control. 

Community Development Director Caldwell said the State regulations don't allow 
loitering and if there are complaints, the City will track them and send the owner 
a letter. If they don't comply, their CUP can be revoked. 

Dean Smither commented that it's up to the business owner to be responsible 
and take appropriate action to make sure people who are loitering leave the 
premises. He said part of the reason there is crime in Rio Dell is because it is 
difficult for people to make a living. He said as you start seeing prosperity, things 
will clean up. He also noted that opening dispensaries at 9:00 a.m. is a little late 
and thought that perhaps 7:30 would be more appropriate for people that have to 
be at work at 8:00. 

Don Ashley noted that dispensaries in Los Angeles for example must have 
security so once the customer makes their purchase, they must leave the 
premises. He said no dispensary will risk jeopardizing their dispensary license 
by allowing kids to hang out. 

James Cortazar commented that there will probably be no security "guard" on 
duty per say however; there will be a responsible person making sure everyone 
is abiding by the rules so they can protect their license. 

Commissioner Woodall commented that perhaps the City will generate enough 
revenue to enhance the police force. She expressed support to not limit the 

9 



PLANNING COMMISSION 
APRIL 12, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 10 

number of dispensaries provided they are subject to a Conditional Use Permit. 

Commissioner Long stated that having a competitive market will basically self
regulate the number of dispensaries so he agreed to not limit the number. 

Commissioner Marks was not in support of having no limit on the number of 
dispensaries in the City. 

Community Development Director Caldwell asked if the Commission wanted to 
recommend allowance of Type 10A dispensary licenses which are facilities 
where medical cannabis, medical cannabis products, or devices for the use of 
medical cannabis are offered for retail sale including an area for cultivation and 
manufacturing. 

He recommended that if the Commission wants to consider allowing Type 10A 
licenses that a limit is set on the size of the cultivation area and to require 
scrubbers and carbon filters. 

James Cortazar noted that the cultivation area at the dispensary in Arcata is 
approximately 2.000 - 3,000 sq. ft . and that there are no odors at that site. 

David Bridge added that there is also a vegetation room and a mother room so 
it's not all flowering plants. 

Commissioner Long said he would like to limit the size of the cultivation area at 
dispensaries because it could virtually encompass a whole block and take away 
other potential business opportunities. 

Gordon Griswold pointed out that there are a couple of ways to determine 
licensing for cultivation which can be the canopy size based on space or a per 
plant method. He said the per plant method helps with "seed to sale" tracking so 
asked the Commission to keep in mind that under a per plant model for seed to 
sale tracking, the number of tags correlates with the number per license that the 
cultivator has whereas; the square footage method allows as many plants as 
they can grow in that area which can vary considerably depending on the size of 
the plants. 

He said the Commission also needs to define the plants. He said that Colorado 
doesn't define the plants until they are 8 inches tall and babies are not counted. 

10 



PLANNING COMMISSION 
APRIL 12, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 11 

Community Development Director Caldwell said Mr. Griswold made a good point 
and the Commission many want to base the limit on the number of flowering 
plants. 

David Bridge stated that he works with a cultivator in Oregon and noted that 
their number is six (6) plants and they are trying to get it to 12. He said what they 
are doing is growing six (6) plants in a 1,200 sq. ft . area and they vege them for a 
long time so they grow out instead of up which is how they get around the 
regulations. He said it makes it easy to track but also very easy for the cultivator 
to get around the rules. He said plants can easily be trained so six (6) plants can 
fill an entire room. 

Commissioner Long said that it seems that limiting the square footage would be 
easier than trying to identify plants. 

Commissioner Marks asked if there is a way to approve Type 10A licenses with a 
stipulation that the cultivation be located off site rather than at the dispensary. 

Community Development Director Caldwell explained it is his understanding that 
a type 10A license would allow the business to apply for other type licenses and 
be composed of a 10A dispensary license and also includes a cultivation license 
which would either be a type 1, 1 (a), 2, or 2(a) license, and the same for 
manufacturing. 

Community Development Director Caldwell said he would recommend restricting 
the canopy size. 

Commissioner Long asked for a straw vote on whether to restrict licenses to 
dispensaries only, or to allow cultivation and/or manufacturing at dispensaries. 

Community Development Director Caldwell commented that he would not 
recommend manufacturing (extractions) to occur in the Town Center (TC) zone; 
only commercial kitchens in the Town Center (TC). He said the question is 
whether to allow accessory cultivation. 

Commissioners Marks and Woodall expressed support for dispensaries, only 
without manufacturing or cultivation. 

11 



PLANNING COMMISSION 
APRIL 12, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 12 

Commissioner Long said he would consider allowing cultivation if there was a 
size restriction. 

Commissioner Long said he would consider allowing cultivation if there was a 
size restriction. 

Community Development Director Caldwell pointed out that if someone wanted 
to have a cultivation area with a dispensary, they could make application for a 
text amendment to the code. 

He said this wraps up the discussion of dispensaries and testing laboratories 
however; there are a couple of things he would like to touch on that he and 
Commissioner Marks had a discussion on earlier and said the first suggestion 
was to somehow promote only organic cultivation in the City. He said if the City 
were to do that and the tests were to come back showing it wasn't organic, he is 
not sure what would happen at that point. 

David Bridge noted that the State is going to require that all cannabis be organic 
by the year 2020 anyway. He said it would be better to not address organic 
regulations at this time as the State has yet to set up any testing standards. 

Community Development Director Caldwell commented that he knows that 
organic cannabis sells for more than other cannabis and is desired for edibles. 

Commissioner Marks asked if cannabis can be labeled as organic is it hasn't 
been certified as such. 

James Cortazar commented that the Agricultural Department comes to the site 
and inspects the process not the product when certifying an agricultural product 
as organic. 

Community Development Director Caldwell said based on that information he 
would recommend waiting until the State sets standards for organic cannabis. 

David Bridge said there are third-party certifiers but there needs to be 
information out there so the growers will know what they can and can't use for 
their cannabis to be certified as organic. 

12 



PLANNING COMMISSION 
APRIL 12, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 13 

Community Development Director Caldwell said the other suggestion that 
Commissioner Marks brought up was that she would like applicants to be 
residents of California. 

Council member Marks said in Colorado there is a 2-year residency requirement 
to obtain a license and a 6 month residency requirement in Washington. 

Matthew Fortozzo commented that as a patient he feels it is important to have 
mandatory inspections by various agencies and noted that chemicals or 
pesticides such as Eagle 20 are very harmful. He said probably 95% of medical 
marijuana patients don't know what is in their products. 

David Bridge noted that 75-80% of cannabis today is not good enough quality to 
pass the current standards. He said Northern Colorado University recently 
produced a study regarding pesticides on cannabis which he said he would 
forward to the Community Development Director when he gets it. He said there 
is a huge education bubble for the cultivators in order to meet the requirements 
that are tentatively being set up by the State. 

Commissioner Woodall stated that she doesn't have a problem with people not 
being California residents and if they have the money and want to invest in the 
City it would be a benefit. 

Commissioner Long commented that even if the applicants were restricted to 
California the next issue would be to restrict licenses to Humboldt County. 

Community Development Director Caldwell said everyone has to subscribe and 
play by the rules no matter where they come from. 

Gordon Griswold said as a testing laboratory company they have no stand on 
the issue but warned the Commission to be careful how much they restrict 
because if you make it too difficult, the black market will continue and 90% of the 
customers will still purchase on the black market with only 10% purchasing from 
the dispensary. 

David Bridge stated that the latest consensus from True Humboldt and other 
Humboldt groups is that only one-half of one percent of the farms cultivating in 
Humboldt County have actually accomplished getting through the permitting 
process. 

13 



PLANNING COMMISSION 
APRIL 12, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 14 

Commissioner Long commented that if the City implements safe and reasonable 
policies and the applicants abide by them, they will become more comfortable 
with the policies. 

Matthew Fortozzo said if dispensary licenses are opened up to everyone and 
the City imposes somewhat relaxed policies they can see who the serious 
players are who want to comply and it will weed out those that don't. 

Michelle. Malaret asked if she could see a show of hands in the audience of 
how many people plan to open dispensaries; there were three hands raised. 

Community Development Director Caldwell reviewed staff's recommendation 
regarding adoption of the resolution. 

Motion was made by Woodall/Marks to adopt Resolution PC 094-2016 
recommending approval of Medical Marijuana Commercial Land Use 
Regulations, Section 17.30.195 of the Rio Dell MuniCipal Code (RDMC) with the 
minor amendments as recommended. Motion carried 3-0. 

Billy Joe Long, Vice Chair 

Attest: 

Karen Dunham, City Clerk 

14 



675 Wildwood Avenue 

Rio Dell, CA 95562 

(707) 764-3532 

Cny Of 

For Meeting of: August 23,2016 

To: Planning Commission 

From: 

Through: 

Kevin Caldwell, Community Development Director e 
Kyle Knopp, City Manager 

Date: August 1, 2016 

Subject: Chapter 17.40 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC) 

Recommendation: 

That the Planning Commission: 

1. Receive staffs report regarding amending Section 17.40.030 of the Enforcement 
Regulations, Chapter 17.40 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC); 

2. Open the public hearing, receive public input and deliberate; 

3. Find that: 

(a) The proposed text amendment is consistent with the General Plan; and 

(b) The proposed text amendment has been processed in accordance with the 
applicable provisions of the California Government Code and the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); 

4. Adopt Resolution No. PC 097-2016 recommending that the City Council amend Chapter 
17.40 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC) to accurately reflect the referenced 
sections. 

Background 

In late 2014 the City reformatted Chapter 17.25 and added a number of new regulations to 
Chapter 17.30, to the Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC). In recently reviewing the Enforcement 
regulations, Chapter 17.40 of the RDMC, staff discovered that Section 17.40.030 referred to two 

Chapter 17.40 RDMC PC August 23, 2016 

15 



Sections that were recodified to new section numbers. The two referenced sections, 17.25.030 
and 17.25.120 refer to "Adult Entertainment" and "Camping". Those sections were recodified to 
Sections 17.30.030 and 17.30.170 respectively. Below is a copy of the existing and proposed 
language. 

17.40.030 Penalty. 

Notwithstanding any other provisions of this tilie, including RDMC 17.40.020, any 
person, whether principal, agent, employee or otherwise who violates RDMC 
17.a5.QJQ 17.30.030 or 17.a~i.1aQ 17.30.170 shall be guilty of a misdemeanor 
and may be punished as follows: 

(1) By imprisonment in the County Jail not to exceed six months; or 

(2) A fine not to exceed $1,000 for violations of RDMC 17.a5.QJQ 17.30.030 and 
a fine not to exceed $500.00 for violations of RDMC ~ 17.30.170; or 

(3) A combination of such imprisonment and fine. lOrd. 252 § 8.02.5, 2004.] 

Procedural Requirements 

Pursuant to Section 17.35.010 of the City of Rio Dell Municipal Code, the following City 
procedures are required to amend the Ordinance: 

• An amendment may be initiated by one or more owners of property affected by the 
proposed amendment, as set out in Section 17.35.010(3), or by action of the Planning 
Commission, or the City Council. 

• The application of one or more property owners for the initiation of an amendment shall 
be filed in the office of the City Clerk on a form provided, accompanied by a filing fee. 

• Subject only to the rules regarding the placing of matters on the Planning Commission 
agenda, the matter shall be set for a public hearing. 

• Notice of hearing time and place shall be published once in a newspaper of general 
circulation at least ten calendar days before the hearing or by posting in at least three 
public places. 

• At the public hearing, the Planning Commission shall hear any person affected by the 
proposed amendment. The hearing may be continued from time to time. 

• Within 40 days of the conclusion of the hearing, the Planning Commission shall submit 
to the City Council a written report of recommendations and reasons therefore. 

• Subject only to the rules regarding the placing of matters on its agenda, the City Council, 
at its next regular meeting following the receipt of such report, shall cause the matter to 
be set for a public hearing. Notice of the time and place of the hearing shall be given as 
provided in Section 17.35.010(5), hereof. 

Chapter 17.40 RDMC PC August 23,2016 

16 



• At the public hearing, the City Council shall hear any person affected by the proposed 
amendment. The hearing may be continued to a specified future date, but shall be 
concluded within 60 days of the commencement thereof. 

• The City Council shall not make any change in the proposed amendment until the 
proposed change has been referred to the Planning Commission for a report, and the 
Planning Commission report has been filed with the City Council. 

Zone Reclassification Required Findings 

1. The proposed amendment is consistent and compatible with the General Plan and any 
implementation programs that may be affected. 

There are no polices in the General Plan which would prohibit amending the zoning regulations 
to accurately refer to the originally intended provisions. 

2. The proposed amendments have been processed in accordance with the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). 

Based on the nature of the project, staff has determined that the project is Statutorily Exempt 
pursuant to Section 15061(b) (3) of the CEQA Guidelines, Title 14, Chapter 3 of the California 
Code of Regulations. Pursuant to Section 15061(b) (3) of the CEQA Guidelines this exemption 
is covered by the general rule that CEQA applies only to projects which have the potential for 
causing a significant effect on the environment. Where it can be seen with certainty that there 
is no possibility that the project in question may have a significant effect on the environment, the 
project is not subject to CEQA. Based on the nature of the proposed amendments, to 
reestablish the original intended numerical sequence of the regulations, staff believes there is 
no evidence to suggest that the minor amendment will have a significant effect on the 
environment. 

Attachments 

Attachment 1: Resolution No. PC 097-2016 recommending that the City Council amend 
Chapter 17.40 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC) to accurately reflect the 
referenced sections. 

Chapter 17.40 ROMC PC August 23,2016 

17 



RESOLUTION NO. PC 097-2016 

O n Of 

~ ELL 

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF RIO DELL 

RECOMMENDING THAT THE CITY COUNCIL AMEND CHAPTER 17.40 OF THE RIO 

DELL MUNICIPAL CODE (ROMe) TO ACCURATELY REFLECT REFERENCED SECTIONS 

WHICH WERE RECENTLY AMENDED: 

WHEREAS the City has added a number of new regulations to Chapter 17.30, General Provisions 
and Exception, to the Rio Dell Municipal Code (ROMe) over the past couple of years; and 

WHEREAS based on the added provisions, the numerical section numbers have changed; and 

WHEREAS in recently reviewing the Enforcement regulations, Chapter 17.40 of the RDMC, staff 

discovered that Section 17.40.030 referred to two Sections that were recodified to new section 

numbers; and 

WHEREAS the two referenced sections, 17.25.030 and 17.25.120 refer to "Adult 

Entertainment" and "Camping". Those sections were recodified to Sections 17.30.030 and 

17.30.170 respectively; and 

WHEREAS the Planning Commission is now recommending that Section 17.40.030 be amended 
to accurately reflect the new sections numbers; and 

WHEREAS the City has reviewed and processed the proposed amendment in conformance with 
Sections 65350 - 65362 of the California Government Code; and 

WHEREAS the City has reviewed and processed the proposed amendment in conformance with 
Section 17.35.010 of the City of Rio Dell Municipal Code; and 

WHEREAS the City finds that based on evidence on file and presented in the staff report that 
the proposed amendment is consistent and compatible with the General Plan and any 
implementation programs that may be affected; and 

WHEREAS the proposed amendment has been processed in accordance with the applicable 
provisions of the California Government Code and the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEGA); and 

Chapter 17.40 Amendments PC Resolulion August 23,2016; Resolution No, 097-2016 

18 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the City of Rio Dell finds 
that : 

1. The proposed amendments are consistent with the General Plan and any applicable specific 

plan; and 

2. The proposed amendments are Statutorily Exempt pursuant to Section lS061(b) (3) of the 
CEQA Guidelines, Title 14, Chapter 3 of the California Code of Regulations. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the City of Rio 
Dell recommends that the City Council approve the proposed amendments to Section 
17.40.030 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC) to accurately reflect the new sections 

numbers. 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the forgoing Resolution was PASSED and ADOPTED at a regular meeting 
of the Planning Commission of the City of Rio Dell on August 23, 2016 by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

Nick Angeloff, Chairperson 

ATIEST: 

I, Karen Dunham, City Clerk for the City of Rio Dell, State of California, hereby certify the above 
and foregoing to be a full, true and correct copy of Resolution No. PC 097·2016 adopted by the 
Planning Commission of the City of Rio Dell on August 23, 2016. 

Karen Dunham, City Clerk, City of Rio Dell 

Chapter 17.40 Amendments PC Resolution August 23. 2016; Resolution No, 097·2016 

19 



675 Wildwood Avenue 

Rio Dell, CA 95562 

(707) 764-3532 

em Of 

~ DELL --
For Meeting of: August 23, 2016 

To: 

From: 

Through: 

Date: 

Subject: 

Planning Commission 

Kevin Caldwell, Community Development Director e 
'y" Knopp, my M""" ~ 
August 2, 2016 

An application for a lot line Adjustment between two where 233+/- square feet 

will be adjusted from APN 052-202-09 to APN 052-202-10. APN 052-202-09 is 

developed with a single family residence and detached garage. APN 052-202-10 

is vacant. 

Recommendation: 

That the Planning Commission: 

1. Receive staff's report regarding the proposed lot line adjustment; 

2. Open the public hearing, receive public input, close the public hearing and deliberate; 

3. Find that the proposed lot line adjustment is consistent with the Rio Dell General Plan, 
Zoning and Building regulations and is Categorically Exempt pursuant to Section 15305 
of the CEQA Guidelines, Title 14, Chapter 3 of the California Code of Regulations 

4. Adopt Resolution No. PC 098-2016 approving the proposed lot line adjustment. 

Summary 

Ontiveros and Associates recently submitted an application for a lot line adjustment between 2 
parcels of about 4,056 square feet (APN 052-202-10; Adams) and about 5,066 square feet (APN 
052-202-09; Price). The proposed lot line adjustment will adjust about 233 square feet from 
APN 052-202-09 to APN 052-202-10. 

Adams Lot Line Adjustment August 2016 

20 



Based on a review of the Preliminary Title Report, current deeds and creation deeds, staff has 
determined that both parcels are legal, separate parcels created in compliance with the 
Subdivision Map Act and local regulations. 

The Adam's parcel, APN 052-202-10, was created by deed in on February 25th
, 1946, Book 283 

of Deeds, Page 399. The Price parcel, APN 052-202-09 was also created by deed on June 13th
, 

1947, Book 523 of Deeds, Page 278. 

Based on the proposed project, staff has determined that the project is Statutorily Exempt 
pursuant to Class 5, Section 15305 of the CEQA GUidelines, Title 14, Chapter 3 of the California 
Code of Regulations. This exemption applies to lot line adjustments with an average slope of 
less than 20% and does not result in any changes in land use or density. 

The applicant has submitted evidence in support of making the required findings. Lot line 
adjustments shall be approved if the required findings can be made. Therefore staff 
recommends that the Planning Commission approve the project as conditioned. 

Required Findings 

Section 16.35.030 Rio Dell Municipal Code (ROMe). 

A lot line adjustment shall be approved or conditionally approved when there is compliance 
with all of the following approval criteria: 

(1) The application is found to be complete; and 

(2) Either (a) the parcels to be adjusted are found to be in compliance with the Subdivision 
Map Act and local subdivision regulations, or (b) a Conditional Certificate of Subdivision 
Compliance for the parcel or parcels has been issued for recordation prior to or concurrent with 
the lot line adjustment; and 

(3) The proposed lot line adjustment neither causes non-conformance nor increases the 
severity of pre-existing nonconformities with the General Plan, Zoning and Building ordinances. 
Providing compliance with this subsection, the approval shall not be conditioned on correction 
or preexisting non-conformities with the General Plan, Zoning and Building ordinances. 

Staff Analysis 

1. Complete Application 

The applicant has submitted the required application materials including the map/plot plan 
illustrating the proposed lot line adjustment, copies of the current deeds, creation documents 
and copies of a Preliminary Title Report (PTR) for each of the parcels. 

Adams Lot Line Adjustment August 2016 

21 



2. Subdivision Map Act Compliance 

As previously indicated, both parcels were created in compliance with State and local 
regulations. The Adam's parcel, APN 052-202-10, was created by deed in on February 25th

, 

1946, Book 283 of Deeds, Page 399. The Price parcel, APN 052-202-09 was also created by 
deed on June 13th

, 1947, Book 523 of Deeds, Page 278. A copy of the creation deeds are 
included as Attachment 2. 

3. General Plan, Zoning and Building Ordinance Consistency 

The parcels are planned and zoned Urban Residential (UR). The purpose of the Urban 
Residential zone is to provide neighborhood residential areas with varying densities for single 
family dwellings. A copy of the Urban Residential development standards is included as 
Attachment 2. The Urban Residential designation requires a minimum parcel size of 6,000 
square feet. Both parcels are less than the required 6,000 square feet for new parcels. They 
are considered legal, nonconforming parcels. The Adams parcel (APN 052-202-10) is currently 
about 4,056 square feet. The Price parcel (APN 052-202-09) is currently about 5,066 square 
feet. Again, the proposed lot line adjustment will adjust about 233 square feet from the Price 
parcel (APN 052-202-09) to the Adams parcel (APN 052-202-10). The resulting Adams parcel 
will be about 4,290 square feet and the resulting Price parcel will about 4,832 square feet. 

The proposed lot line adjustment does not result in any nonconformity in regards to setbacks or 
lot coverage and does not require the relocation of any easements or utilities. 

Based on comments from referral agencies, information submitted by the applicant and the 
recommended conditions of approval, the evidence supports the finding that the proposed lot 
line adjustment is in conformance with all applicable policies of the Zoning Regulations, General 
Plan and Building Regulations. 

4. California Environmental Quality Act {CEQAI 

Based on the proposed project, staff has determined that the project is Statutorily Exempt 
pursuant to Class 5, Section 15305 of the CEQA Guidelines, Title 14, Chapter 3 of the California 
Code of Regulations. This exemption applies to lot lines adjustment with an average slope of 
less than 20% and does not result in any changes in land use or density. 

Attachments: 

Attachment 1: Project Referral and Maps 
Attachment 2: Current Deeds and Creation Deeds 
Attachment 3: Urban Residential Development Standards 
Attachment 4: Conditions of Approval 
Attachment 5: Resolution No. PC -098-2016 

Adams Lot Line Adjustment August 2016 

22 



em Of 

~ 
675 Wildwood Avenue 
Rio Dell, CA 95562 
(707) 764-3532 

Community Development Deportment 

DELL 
Project Referral 

Date: July 28, 2016 

To: 0 Public Works 
o Rio Dell Fire District 
o Rio Dell Police Department 
o County Environmental Health 

o County Planning Department 
o Regional Water Quality Control Board 

Applicant: Stephen Adams 

Address: 1742 Cecil Avenue 

City/State/Zip: Fortuna. CA. 95540 

Telephone: (707) 599-4309 

Email: 

Assessor Parcel Number(s): 052-202-09 & 10 

o Building Inspection 
o Rio Dell City Manager 
o City Engineer ( GHD) 
o Caltrans District #1 

o Fish and Wildlife 

o Applicant/Agent 

Agent: Ontiveros & Associates 

Address: 404 N. Fortuna Boulevard 

City/State/Zip: Fortuna. CA. 95540 

Telephone: (707) 725-7410 

Email: karl.prebor@suddenlinkmail.com 

General Plan/Zoning: Urban Residential 

Project Description: A lot line adjustment between two parcels where 233+/- square feet will be adjusted from 
APN 052-202-09 to APN 052-202-10. APN 052-202-09 is developed with a single family residence and detached 
garage. APN 052-202-10 is vacant. 
Project location: The project site is located at the intersection of Center Street and Pacific Avenue. 

Please review the attached information regarding the above referenced project and provide your comments with 
any recommended conditions of approval within 10 calendar days of the above date. If no response is received or a 
request for an extension is not received within 10 calendar days of the above date, it will be assumed that you r 
agency has no comments or concerns regarding the project. The project Is scheduled to be heard at the Planning 
Commission meeting of August 23, 2016. 

If you have any questions concerning the project, please contact Kevin Caldwell, Community Development Director 
between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. Monday through Friday at (707) 764-3532. 

We have reviewed the above referenced application and recommend the following (please check one): 

D Recommend approval. The Department has no comment at this time. 

D Recommend conditional approval. Suggested conditions attached. 

D Other comments: 

Print Name: ______ ______ _ _ _ ___ _ 

Project Referral Form 

Date: _________ _ 

Page 1 

4TTArul\,.~al'" .. 
23 



Community Development Department 

675 Wildwood Avenue 

Rio Dell, CA 95562 

(707) 764-3532 

, 
-' 

I 

.... 

- .. 
• , "' . " '9 _ _ .. I ........ .. N ~ .. . "1 ._ .. 

U """M '. '.1 ........ _ ..... . 'U .. . _ 
f,' . .. .. ' .. . . 1 ...... Ihl ... .... . ... ..... " 1 

• .. • • ... ··, .. u .. • _, • • ( . ... , .. .... ..... ..,. ... 
.... " 1 • L .. _ ... 110> 

Applicant: Stephen Adams 

PTN SEC 6 IN IE 
(IUo OElL ) 

Adams Lot Line Adjustment 

. . ... _ ., .. 
111 .- ..... . .. 

C.HOI 

~ DELL 

52 -20 
'~ 

Add ress: __ --"1"-74"'2 ...... C"'ec""iI"'A-"v"'e"'n"'u"'e ____ _ 

Agent: Ontiveros & Associates 

Address: 404 N. Fortuna Boulevard 

City/State/Zip: Fortuna, CA. 95540 City/State/Zip: Fortuna. CA. 95540 

Telephone: (707)599-4309 Telephone: (707)725-7410 

Email: Email: karl.prebor@suddenlinkmail.com 

Assessor Parcel Number(s): 052-202-09 & 10 General Pian/Zoning: Urban Residential 

Project Description: A lot line adjustment between two parcels where 233+/- square feet will be adjusted from 
APN 052-202-09 to APN 052-202-10, APN 052-202-09 is developed with a single family residence and detached 
garage. APN 052-202-10 is vacant. 
Prolect Location: The project site is located at the intersection of Center Street and Pacific Avenue. 

Adams LLA Vicinity Map July 1016 

24 



RECORDING REQUE?TED BY: ( 
Fidelity National Title Company of California 
Escrow No.: 05·22B035·MC 
Locate No.: CAFrfl'0912-0912'OOCll-OOOO226035 
ntle No.: 05·228035 

When Recorded Mail Document 
and Tax Statement To: 
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen Adams 
1742 Cecil Ave 
Fortuna CA 95540 

APN: 52-202-10 

The undersIgned grantor( 5) declare( 5) 
Documentary transfer tax is $44,00 

GRANT DEED 

[ X ] computed on full value of property conveyed, or 

( 2006-15156-4 
Recorded - Official Records 

Humboldt County, California 
Carolyn Cmich, Recorder 

R",orded by ADELlT\, NATIONAL TITLE co 
Rec Fee 16 . 00' 
Doc TrfTax 44 .00 
Clerk: LH Total : 60 . 00 

May 24, 2006 at 10:00 

SPACE ABOVE THiS UN!: t'VK N:\,..UKLn:.K ~ V~~ 

[ 1 romputed on full value less value of liens or encumbrances remaining at time of sale, 
[ 1 Unincorporated Area City of Fortuna, 

FOR A VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, receIpt of whIch 15 hereby acknowledged, Robert E. Parsells, a married 
man and Michael F. Austrus and Nancy E. Austrus, husband and wife 

hereby GRANT(S) to Stephen Adams and Susan Adams, husband and wife as j oint tenants 

the following described real property in the City of Fortuna, County of Humboldt, State of California: 

SEE EXHIBIT MAM ATTACHED HERETO AND MADE A PART HEREOF 

DATED: May 3,2006 

) 

~~eu~~-L ___________ ) t~~~~~~L:~~~~~ 
- \ ~ F. Austrus 

(here insert Me and tit~ of e office , personally c; 
appeared ~~ .-7 Ii, fh r s e. U S ""-~f"p.t."""c:"""'k:::.......:l-"'-----'-:...:Q;;:""";;)l"-""'':!;;''''::;S,';;::';;:~''''''''~'::> 
_______ ---:-__ ---:---:-__ --:-----:--:-~' Nancy E. A~S 
personally known to me (or proved to me on the basis of 
satisfactory evidence) to be the person(s) whose name(5) 
is/are subscribed to the within instrument and 
acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same 
In his/her/their authorized capaclty{Ies), and that by 
his/her/their slgnature(s) on the Instrument the person(s), 
or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, 
executed the Instrument. 

FO-21 1 (Rev 7Jq6) 
(graot)(O.'-06) 

MAIL TAX STATEMENTS AS DIRECTeD ABOVE 

GRANT DEED 

ATIACHMENT2 

, 
f ~ 

I 

\ .. 25 



, , 
( 

CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

State of California 

County 01 Humboldt 

On (z. £lit f ZoDG .... balo .. me, __ K-:e:::;v:-::in::;;A=, C;;;:o=l;:-:em~an",,::-N=o:::t~ary~P_u_b_lic~ 
HlnInClnt. ttoec. (La. "Jim DD&. McIIIIy NIk"1 

personally appeared 1"11 ( C H7}- r::c- r- , /I cJ..J 7lt.u J 

~--o patSOn8Ily "'-" to me 
~ed to me on the basis of satlsfacto<y 
evidence 

.. .. i , 

---------------------OFnONAL--------------------TIIouf1J /flO InfOtmatIon _. not ~by III .... mq _ _ "'_ ~ on"" _".,_,...,.,. ___ tal_d/hls/omlID ___ 

Description of Attached Document 

Title or TyPe 01 Document ~~..,.!J!=.cl"'-~..::!::.::..::e1:c!:~~ ______ "'7""""-----
Document Date: miff 3 ~ , Numbarol Pages: __ 2-__ 

Slgnar(s) Other Than Named Above: !(D k<Z., 

Capaclty(les) Claimed by Signer 
Slgna~sName: _______________________ ___ 

o Individual o Corporate 0IIIcar - TItIe(a): -::; ____________ _ 
o Partner - 0 UmHed 0 General 
o Attorney-in-Fact 
o Trustee 
o Guardian or Conservator 
O ~r. ___________________________ __ 

2006 15156-4 

I "" 
~ 26 



( 

CALIFORNIA ALLoPURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

State 01 CaIWomia } 

County of -=..:H~um=..:.b..:..ol..:..d..:..t ______ 88. 

On IL 4/r 'I ~ before me __ K--:e:::v:;-:in",A=. ;:;::C::::ol~em:-=an,.,;,:::-N=ot-:cary~P_u_b_lic~ 
0- ~ I A ....... " """ fA 0.::.( . .... ..... au.. NOIIry NIIc1 

personally appeared ,tv h',v c-y C V ( TIt .lJ 
~~ 

''-

o personally known to me 
;I1-proved to me on the basis 0/ 88tisfactory 
evfdence 

to be the personltt whose nam~_ 
subscribed 10 the within Instrument and 
acknowledged 10 me that ~ecuted 
the same in ~1IbaI<-~ed _ 
capacfty(/llsh. and that by ~ 
slgnalurejeJ.on the Instrument the ~ or 
the entity upon behalf of which the pe~ 
acted, executed the Instrument. 

~~. 

---------------------OFnOHAL--------------------TI>oc.9'I "" InfonnI/fkJn _ Ja not teqeJtecI by .... H ___ It>".,..". ~ "" /lie -"'-1IIId ca./d".-
"""'*- twmOVaIlIIId,.._ 01". bm It>_dr>t:u7w>L 

OescrlpUon of Attached Document~ 

lltIeorTypeofOocument ~ ...}../£Cp 

Documenl Date: Il1lJ.t.3 lj.nf'l. 
I 

S!gner(s) Other Than NamedAbove:&o~e-e.r F . PA<ca..U 

Capaclty(lea) Claimed by Signer 

Number of Pages: 2. + 0>(' ~ 

1'/->-0 tldtc /CW{L.f7 /1<.& n(UJ 

Signer's Name: __________________ _ 

o Individual 
o Corporate OftIcer- TrUe(s): --:~-------------
o Partner- O Umned 0 General 
o AUomey~n-Fact 
o Trus1se 
o Guardian or Conservator o Other. ____________________ _ 

Signer Is Reprasenting: ________________ _ 

I 
27 



fs..row No.: 05-2~803S-Nt; 
locate No.: CAFNT0912-0912-0001-0000228Uj5 
'ntte No.: 05-228035 

EXHIBIT "An 

Tl-fE lAND REFERRED TO HEREIN BelOW IS SITUATED IN THE crTY OF RIO DEll, COUmY OF HUMBOLDT, STATE OF 
CAUFORNIA, AND IS DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

That portion of Lots 1 and 2 in Block 2 of the Town of Rio Dell, acmrding to the map thereof on file in the Recorder's office 
of said Humboldt County in Book 1 of Maps, Page 5S, described as follows: 

BEGINNING on the Southwest comer of said Lot 1; and running 
thence Northerly along the West line of said Lots 1 and 2 a distance of 80.38 feet to a 3/4 inch pipe monument located 

North 60 degrees 58 minutes East 61. 7S feet from a 6 inch by 6 inch concrete monument set on the Westerly right of way 
line of the State Highway on the Northerly end of a tangent of said highway running North 14 degrees 2S minutes West; 
running 

thence from said 3/4 inch pipe monument North 75 degrees 3 minutes East 44.35 feet; 
thence South 86 degrees 25 minutes East 8.1S feet to a 3/4 inch pipe monument; 
thence South 14 degrees 37 minutes East 74 feet, more or less, to the Southerly line of said Lot 1; and 
thence South 70 degrees West along said last mentioned line to the point of beginning. 

2006-1 ; 15', ~ 

'1 
~ 28 



I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

tot l in 51c~~ 2 ot ~~e ~O~ ot Rio De l l 

Alao th. t porti on of tGt 2 

BEOlt-,l n .. O at ~h • .sou~hI.e,t 

thence Cl. o:"tharl! 

thence In an easterly 

11no of saId t ot j 

399 ' 

accord!:;; t o tbo mill' of ,aid ham on l!la 

tho eut 

thence souther alvns aald ou~ lIne Z2 toet r:lo:'e Dr Ie " tg tho southa.,st ccrr.c-

of aaid lotJ 

thene osterl, alone the sDutherlr lIne at •• 1~ lot a tho place of beginnIng. 

~ss ~r hand this datel Ju1, 6 1946 

srAT~ CALIFORNIA, I 
: / SS, 
~~nty Dr B~beldt. 

(,

', on thll dataJ July 16. 1946. before ca 

I 

County. per.sotta1l1 appeared ETHEL D. ROSCOE 

!lcrlbed to the IIlthin ItlStr\%l5nt, and Acme_Ie 

tor ... 14 

M:lO 1& "ub-

.""" , 
WITNESS =1 hand and otflolal 8011. 

County ot H\l1:bDldtr 
C.o.l1hrnta. 

719~ FUed fa:- Reo(l!'d at the ROCluast of I! Abstract &: 'title Co., Jutr 19th, 1946. 

lit 9131 o'clock A. )l., and recorded In Book: 28, of Deeds at pge '99, ROcC'd:ll at Hudloldt 

Count,., 

W. J. Crano, Recorder. C,':::~:~~~ ... _ .. ~ 
; Fall Pald $1.00 (;7 ..... ,. .... / . - By 8em1c1l Starr. Deputy Recorder. 

GRAn ottD 

NIeHaus v. TOIolPKIH'S a~ KAYBZLI.!: A. TOMPKIlfS (tonerir M4YBELU ". BROWN) hua'band and 
, 

I wite, In cana140rattan at Ten Dollar" to thon In han~ paId, reCeipt or whlcb ~ be rob,. acknowl-
! 

I 

edsed. do hereb,. GRANT TO Buo,. Flnle,. and [,aura Flnle,., Hu:sband and _lte In Joint tenaner aU 

that rllal property In the CO!Jntr ot ih:r.boldt, Stat. or Co11t=-n10, do:u:rlbed .. tullonl 

'l'bOlliO portloW! at Lot 1 and ot tot 2 ot Slook 2 or the To .. ot RIo Dell acoordlng to 

th" .... p lborool Dn Ule In tho Recurdllr's otUce or EUl:lboldt count,. In Book 1 ot Maps, Paso 55, 

parUcularlr ducrlbeCl •• tollow.: 

Soglnnlns at the :Jouthwost comer ot saId Lot 1 and runn.1na: thence northarlr alone: the 

I weat l!na: ot uld Lot 1 .n4 or saId Lot 2, 80.,S teet to a ,,Ai. Incb pipe mOO\IMnt located 
by 6 1bob. 

I north 60 4egren 58 mlnut ..... t 61.75 tut trD:II a 6 Incb/concrete .0n\Cl4nt ut on tot:. '/futerl,. 

: rIght at ",ar 11ne ot the Stato H1s:l':Ifar at thll nortl".er1,. ,ad ot a tangent of uld Hlah"a, 

I Ing north 14 ~e~oos 25 clnutoD WODt runnIng tbonce from .ald };~ L~ah pIpe manu~nt north I ~;:, ..... , minuto: ... t 44.,; to.t, th~'o ,ou'h 86 d ....... 2'j minut ...... 8.1; te.t to. 

I }/4 inch pIpe mo:tl.:Cnt, tbonce aoutb 14 dogrou '1 clnutea "!It 14 teot more or leu to tbe 

I aoutharl,. lIna ot .ald Lot 1, tboDCO aa\rth 10 dog::-ou wut along the la:llt mentioned Uno to the 

point ot beginnIng. 

EXECUTSO lObi. 25tb dar ot Feb. 1946. 

KarbeUe A. 'l'Cltpkins 

lflcbola. V. 'l'zpklM 

.--~ 
I 
! 

29 



400 

ST.Hr CF CALIFO::lUIA 
(ACXYO'Nt!DGISC'!' BY !~!VIDl'AL) I Co~n:7 ct n~bolct. 

On t!\h 25th da7 or Feb. in tbe Teor One Thol.3ar.~ 1I!n8 Rurodr.d an:! Fortr SIx. 'boron I 
co, OeD. W. Yuill, & ltotarr Public 1n end tor aaid Cour.tr, rllf1dlna: therdn, duly corr=18stocel 

and ~.orn, personallr .ppearcd Narbelle A. TDCl.p~lM ar.d Nickolu V, 'roCIPkin' kno~ to lr.O to be 

the portion, whon n&"01 arc Jl.Ibscrlbed to ella within Instrt:l:ent. am acknowledged t~.at tho," 

IN WI'llfESS WICR20?, 1 to .. " harounto ut 'rtf hand and atrUed raT ot!lclal leal .t =:7 

crUce In tho utd Coun:,. of Humboldt, the da, am year 1.n th!. cort1t1cah fIrst above 

written. 

(SEAL) 
ilotn:r7 Publ1c 

Ciao. 
In and 
Shte 

VI. YU1l1J. 
tor tbe "'ounty 0: 
ot Oal1fornia. 

719q P;lod ter Hocard at tbo Requost Dr Beloher Abstract & TItle Oo., . July 19th. 1946, at 

I 

,2 :dn. J;ut 9 b1clook, l. M., .n~ ReCClrcied in BOClk 28, or 00,41 at US' }99, Hur:bol~t Count,. 

ftClcerds_ 

':7. J. Cl"ane, Recoder. 

Fee $1.00 
~~ .. . . ~;c {/ (/ ., Barnlce Sterr, Deputy Reoordtro. 

-----------------------
DEED 

I, CA':'1J£RIlfE: C. OELANEY, • widow GRANT 

s!tulted In the County or HtiJ,SOLDT, Stato or 

to-dt: 

Tbe eas t hAlt or tho ,Gutbwes t quar. r at Sect! on 8 ltd the nc:' tbeaa t 

northwut qUATttlr of Saotlon 17 In 

Io!ur;cUan. 

Centalnlng 120 aores 

shlr , South ot Range' 

fiITNtSS 1111 hand • da 'UI: February 1; 1946. 

Count)' 

Clpert,. 

tho 

February 2G 1946, bdore ee tho umDr.signD , I notl17 public In and tor 

'aid co t,.. personallr appeared Catherine E. Delane,., 

whow nalllo 15 lIub.orlbec! to the "Ubln lnl!trUlnent, and 

t(' 
Wltno" my hand and Clttlclal seal. 

(SEAL) 
Ketan Pub).1c or Rumbal 

7202 ftecol"ded at t~~ re~u •• t or Wl111L~ J. Wlnobol"S. Ju ,. 19th, 1946, at 1II1nutea patt 1Q 

i 

I ,. 

I 

I 

I 

I 

A. 111., In book 

Pald $1.00 

Reoordol"_ 

Deputy. 
i I 
-l-I 
i 
I 
I 

I 

I 
t -' - ••• • 

I 
~-------------------------------I 30 



RECORDING REQUESTED BY 

Humboldt Land Tltl. Company 
AND WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO 

N.1I~ Scott Price 
Ad"' ... 5725 Redwood Drive 

Rohnert Park, Ca. 94928 

Ordt' No. 00122086-001·FH 
SPACEAB 

2005-28422-2 
Recorded - Official Records 

Humboldt County, California 
Carolyn Crnich, Recorder 

Record«l by HUMBOLDT LAND AND TITLE co 
Rec Fee 1 0 0 0 
Doc TrfTax 7 7: 00 
Survey Mon 10 . 00 
Clerk: KJ Total: 97.00 

Aug 23, 2005 at 10:00 

GRANT DEED 

THE UNDERSIGNED GRANTOR(s) DECLARE(s) 
Cily of Rio Oell 

Oocumentary Transfer TalC is s=n".Q~Q:,;=:====::::-:-::==7C~_ 
6!J computed on full value of interest or property conveyed, or 

Porcel No OS2·202.()Q9 o full value less value of liens or encumbrilnces remainrng OIl 
the lime of sale 

FOR A VALUABLE CONSIDERATION. receipt of which is hereby acknowledged. 

Russell O. Laustrup, aka Russell O. Lastraup, and Etste Laustrup, husband and wife 

hereby GRANT(s) to 

Scott Price, an unmarried man 

Ihe lollowlng real property in Ihe C,ly of Rio Oell 

County of Humboldt. State of California : 

See Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

Daled: August 22, 2005 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
COUNTY OF Humboldt ______________ _ 

On Au?,ust 22, 2005 before me, 

the underSigned 

11 Notary Puolic in and for saId County and State. personally appeared 

Russell D. Laustrup and Elsie Laustrup 

personally known to me (or proved 10 me on the oasis of satisfactory 
evidence) 10 be the person(s) wtlose name(s) is/are subscnbed 10 the 
withrn instrument and acknowledged to me that he/sMlthel executed 
lhe same In hls"'crllheif authorized capa cl ty(ies ) and thai by 
hiS nerJU'l~r signat~te(s) on tne Instrument Ine person(s) or tMe entity 
upon behalf of wtuch the person(s), acled. e.oe:ecuted the Instrument 

SI9nalure~IUIL~~~~c:.==--\~U~:...:::===---

My CommlS ion 1;'I(o,res November lB. 2007 

} 

(This area for offiCial no!onai seal , 

MAIL TAX STATEMENTS TO PARTY SHOWN ON ThE FOLLOWING LINE; IF NO PARTY SHOWN, MAIL AS DIRE CTED ABOVE 

(~ 
____ 31 



Exhibit A 

DESCRIPTION 

That real property situate in the City of Rio Dell, County of Humboldt, State of California, described as follows: 

Those portions of Lots 1 and 2 in Block 2 of the Town of Rio Delt, according to the Map thereof on fite in the 
Recorder's Office of Humbotdt County in Book 1 of Maps, Page 55, more particularty described as follows: 

BEGtNNING at a Yo-Inch pipe monument on the West line of said Lot 2 and located North 60 degrees 56 minutes East 
61,75 feet from a 6-lnch by 6-inch concrete monument set on the Westerly right of way line of the State Highway at the 
Northerly end of a tangent of said highway, running North 14 degrees 25 minutes West; and running 

thence from said Yo-inch pipe monument, North 75 degrees 3 minutes East 44,35 feet ; 
thence South 66 degrees 25 minutes East 6.15 feet to a Yo-inch ptpe monument; 
thence South 14 degrees 37 minutes East 74 feet, more or tess, to the Southerly line of said Lot 1; 
thence North 70 degrees East along the last mentioned line 62.60 feet to the Southeast corner of said Lot 1; 
thence North along the Easterly line of said Lots 1 and 2, a distance of 62 feet to a point located Northwesterly 

22 feet from the Southeast corner of said Lot 2; 
thence South 70 degrees West (along a line parallel with and at all points 22 feet Northerly from the South line 

of said Lot 2, said 22 feet being measured at right angles to said line) 106.6 feet, more or tess, to the West i'ne of said 
Lot 2; and 

thence Southeasterly atong the last mentioned West line 2.19 feet to the point of beginning. 

2005-28422_2 



r 
--------------- ( ------------------ -----:--=:.-=====:=-...-. .......,l.!= 

cst'? -J10 t 
GRANT DEED ~ 

to ~!1.m 

GR'-'NT TO. 

in fw.d poi~ . .receipt of which it heroby cc:knowled91!o~. do~ .. __ , hereby 

AlID!!!1J •.. c.~ . .I.1IJSTa~ =~ .. G.OLlUE UUSmtll'., hl1 .. ~and_4%ld..._. 

wlt... . _. _ . 

ell thot rool p r-c..per+y if'! tho COUl\ty of Huml»klt, Stotc of Co~{omio doscribod,,~ fofloW1: 

, 

no .. port!oal ot L.t 1 en4 ot tot 2 ot lll •• k 2 of 'II. iown ot . ~ 
•••• Rio JltIll .Qcord1:.s t. the map th.reot on fU. in tho R •• ord ... • I 

OiUo. ot lillI.baHt OOnot7 io aook 1 ot llapo, PaSI 65, parUalllo .. l7 
ae.orib_, aa tollo •• : 

Besinaial! at 11 3/4 loob pip. Qon"",,,,t on th. "'8t 110.0 at oald 
Lot 2 al14 la.ot.~ aortll 60 4egr ••• 58 minot ••• a.t 51.16 t •• ~ t .. om 
a 6 leah by 6 lau!> ooa ... at. monam.nt •• t oa tile .leter17 riSbt of : 
.oy l1nl ot th. atato Klgh.a7 at tbl a ... tblr17 .a4 ot • taageat ot • 
8014 111gh-a;, rlUlJ11ns 1I0rtb 14 4egre .. 25 m1!111tea .... at. rWllllJlS thillOI 
fro~ '014 a74 1110b plp. moaument 1I0rth 76 4115"". a mlaotl' .a.t 
4'.36 toot. tb.llo. lonth 80 4Isr ••• 25 mlnatl ••• at 8.15 t •• t to a 
3/' inoh p1p. mOu .... llt, tballo, eooth 14 4ogr ... S7 ·minot .. nat 7' 
fe.t mol" ar 11811 to the 10I%th ... lyl1 •• ot 1414 :Lot 1, thla •• lIortll 
70 '.gr ••• ,,"t Illollg tbl laDt mentioll14 11.1 62.80 t •• t to til. loat 
••• t 001'0'" ot e. 14 :Lot 1, th •••• 1I0rth 19 d.gr •••••• t 010118 thl 
••• t lill. ot •• 1d ~ot 1 an4 ot '014 :Lot 2, 82 t •• t to a polnt looatea 
1I0rth 19 a.gr •• , .Iet 22 tl.\ tram til. lontb ••• t oornor at •• 14 :Lot 2 
th.noe lontll 70 d.g ... " w.at rolollg a 1111. p.roll.l with 0114 ot all 
poilltl 22 t.ot nortberly tram tbe ,onth 11111 ot •• 14 Lot 2, .014 22 
toot b.l.g mla.ur.' at right angll' to •• 14 lial) 108.6 t.ot mOl'l or 
loae to till ••• t 1111. of •• 14 ~ot 2, tbollo' .ootll.oetorly olons the 
l •• t mo.tl0 •• d ••• t 11111 2.19 taot to tho polnt ot blsinal.g. 

EXECUTED In;, 

C~~u0 PZE:O 

t>-y:r...J -
0<::''2..' 2 0 "2... 0 9 

... __ . .L3 .~~ .. d.y ot~_· _ _ J~_ _ 

. U -~-; -' Ii ' 
. ?/A~'"Z , .. ,. _, 

'm~ ":"".( ..t.. ;//{j .. t1:.-0"r~--

. i 
::;Gb:--:-:-::T-=:==~~~ 278t ns==··;=·· .= ..... = .. ·c·· . - •. ........,. - .... -

33 



:,'rAT£ OF CAUf(I'R~IA. 
~~~ ..•.• ~ ._ C"lInl, a' _,, _ _ ._ .~,,_ }., 

--.-~ 

(AeKNoWt.EOOlolEHT lIlY COUPORATIONl 

Il'V(vclll _ ... _ _ __ ~ __ ... _R_~ ____ ._~._ ._~~ ___ ~_ .... __ .~. __ . __ .. __ .. y_. ___ .. ~ 
IIno .... I to nle 'a boil Ih1oo _ _ _ • ___ ....... _ ___ . ~ .. . ~~ ~ _ _ ...... __ • _ _ • ____ • ___ _ ... ~ ___ _ 

nr the corporatiall ,I,., exe"".,1 'ht" .... hldn In","racn, ar.cl ;c!u';a .... I'411f4 '" Inc ,,,-, ulch (.CJrpcw.nitl" UCIt"ll'" 'lie 
"nit". 

IX WITSESS WHERro .. •• J hnt" hcrllnlo ;" 1117 hind Jnd !fliull ttl)' oIft:itJ .1121 aI m, IIllila ill the: -.Aid 

f..'nLln'r 1Ir. ... .. __ .. ~ ... ~_ .. , •. __ .. Iho: dJy Illd TUI 'n Ih" unlnUI« "'l lbolOC: .nitell. • 

I I .,J, 
C] 
~ .... ~ '1 

~ . 

J a ., co 
~ '" w ... 

m w ~ ~ a • f< 

~ 
~ c . 0 0 ., 
= l- f< f< ~ ~ i Z ~ 

. ., 
< ~ §. • co 
0: ~ 

I: 

0 
.! e!l1 (!) ii 1 .. ~I I ~ 

~I 
~ 

~: 0' '! 
, 01 d 

~"·' ____ ·_ "_··~· __ '_ "'_" _ ' _ _ '_~HN.-,~,,,,,,,_ 

~O"7 Pllbllc 'n and (ar tll(..-_ _ ._ . ___ . ___ ~ .. Covf\t7 

,.1_ ._RR_ " ' ~' _ ' _ '_'~~'_ " ~ _ _ ~M_'_'~ :\111" uf CaIUM"l' .--... 

I J 
:i ~ 1< I = • r ~ • ; I! I " • Q 
1 " " .. 
'i J Ii Q .. 

, .5 § ii I .. 
I ; I , '8 

, 7-
I .. 

I I .. I 
I i 'j 

~ , •• 1 -: '" .~ 
.. 

I i :> .. t: i ~ 

! 
.. 

• 1 -

34 



Community Development Department 

675 Wildwood Avenue 

Rio Dell, CA 95562 

(707) 764-3532 

Urban Residential Zone Development Standards 
Section 17.20.030 Rio Dell Municipal Code 

17 .20.030 Urban Residential or UR zone. 

an Of 

~ DElL 
CIto.,~ 

The purpose of the Urban Residential or UR zone is to provide neighborhood residential areas 
with varying densities for single-family dwellings. The following regulations shall apply in all 
Urban Residential or UR zones: 

(1) Principal Permitted Uses. 

(a) Detached single-family dwellings. 

(2) Uses Permitted with a Use Permit. 

(a) Attached dwellings with a minimum lot size of 4,000 square feet; 

(b) Rooming and boarding of not more than two persons not employed on the premises; 

(c) Public and private non-commercial recreation facilities; 

(d) Schools, churches, civic and cultural uses including City offices and day care centers. 

(e) Uses not specifically identified, but similar to and compatible with the uses permitted in the 
zone. 

(3) Other Regulations. See Table 17.20.030 for development standards for the Urban 
Residential (UR) zone. 

Table 17.20.030 
Development Standards for the Urban 

Residential or UR Zone 

Site Development Standard 

Minimum lot Area: 

Maximum Ground Coverage: 

Minimum Lot Width: 

Minimum Yards 

Front: 

Rear: 

Side: 

Maximum Building Height: 

Zone Requirement 

6,000 square feet 

50% 

60 feet 

20 feet 

10 feet 

5 feet 

35 feet 

Section 17.20.030 RDMe Urban Residential Regulations 
L-.. _________________________ AlTACHMENT 3 - 35 



Adams Lot Line Adjustment 

APN No's. 052-202-09 & -10; Case No. LLA 16-01 

Conditions of Approval 

Approval of the lot Line Adjustment is conditioned upon the following terms and 

requirements: 

1. The instruments of record as approved by the Planning Department shall be recorded and 
the lot line adjustment shall be completed within thirty-six (36) months of approval of the lot 
line adjustment. 

Prior to expiration, the applicant or property owner may request extension of the filing 
deadline by submitting a written extension request and a filing fee as set by resolution of the 
City Council. 

The Planning Director may grant a maximum of three years extension of the filing deadline if 
the Planning Director finds that the conditions under which the tentative approval was issued 
have not significantly changed. 

2. A Notice of Lot Line Adjustment shall be recorded for the resulting parcels. The following 
information must be submitted to the Planning Department for review prior to recordation: 

(a) A copy of the deeds to be recorded for the adjusted parcels; provided however, that 
when the parcels being adjusted are held in common ownership, no new deeds shall be 
required for the preparation of the Notice of Lot Line Adjustment. 

(b) A Lot Book Guarantee or Preliminary Title Report current within 6 months or other 
evidence satisfactory to the Planning Department regarding ownership of parcels. 

(c) Completed "Notice of Lot Line Adjustment and Certificate of Subdivision Compliance" 
forms (these are available from the Planning Department). 

3. When the parcels being adjusted are not held in common ownership, copies of the executed 
deeds (signed but not recorded) must be submitted for review and approval to the Planning 
Department. 

4. Pursuant to Section 8762 of the Business and Professions Code a Record of Survey 
monumenting the corners of the new property line(s) may be required. The City Engineer shall 
not require the Record of Survey if in his opinion anyone of the following findings can be made: 

(a) The new boundary line(s) are already adequately monumented of record. 

Adams Lot Line Adjustment August 2016 

ATTACHMENT 4 
36 



(b) The new boundary line(s) can be accurately described from Government Subdivision 
Sections or aliquot parts thereof. 

(c) The new boundary line(s) can be accurately described and located from existing 
monuments of record. 

(d) The new boundary is based upon physical features (i.e. roads, creeks, etc.) which 
themselves monument the line. 

5. The applicants shall provide documentation form the County of Humboldt Tax Collector that 
all property taxes for the parcels involved in the lot line adjustment have been paid in full if 
payable, or secured if not payable to the satisfaction of the County Tax Collector's Office, and 
all special assessments on the parcels must be paid or reapportioned to the satisfaction of the 
affected assessment district. Please contact the Tax Collector's Office approximately three to 
four weeks prior to submitting the required conditions of approval. 

6. The applicant shall pay the application processing fees within 30 days of billing. 

Informational Note: 

1. Approval of the lot line Adjustment does not guarantee that the parcels are suitable for 
development in accordance with existing and future regulations. 

Adams Lot Line Adjustment August 2016 

37 



RESOLUTION NO. PC 098-2016 

CrlY ex 

~ DELL 
--= 

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF RIO DELL 

APPROVING THE ADAMS/PRICE LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT 

WHEREAS Ontiveros and Associates recently submitted an application for a lot line adjustment 

between 2 parcels of about 4,056 square feet (APN 052-202-10; Adams) and about 5,066 

square feet (APN 052-202-09; Price); and 

WHEREAS the proposed lot line adjustment will adjust about 233 square feet from APN 052-

202-09 to APN 052-202-10; and 

WHEREAS the parcels are planned and zoned Urban Residential (UR). The purpose of the 

Urban Residential zone is to provide neighborhood residential areas with varying densities for 

single family dwellings; and 

WHEREAS the Urban Residential designation requires a minimum parcel size of 6,000 square 

feet; and 

WHEREAS the Adams parcel (APN 052-202-10) is currently about 4,056 square feet and the 

Price parcel (APN 052-202-09) is currently about 5,066 square feet. 

WHEREAS both parcels are less than the required 6,000 square feet for new parcels. They are 

considered legal, nonconforming parcels; and 

WHEREAS the resulting Adams parcel will be about 4,290 square feet and the resulting Price 
parcel will about 4,832 square feet; and 

WHEREAS the Adam's parcel, APN 052-202-10, was created by deed in on February 25 th
, 1946, 

Book 283 of Deeds, Page 399 and the Price parcel, APN 052-202-09 was also created by deed on 

June 13th
, 1947, Book 523 of Deeds, Page 278; and 

WHEREAS both parcels were created in compliance with State and local regulations; and 

Adams Lat Line Adjustment August 2016 

ATTACHMENT 5 38 



WHEREAS the proposed lot line adjustment does not result in any nonconformity in regards to 

setbacks or lot coverage and does not require the relocation of any easements or utilities; and 

WHEREAS the applicant has submitted evidence in support of making the required findings and 

WHEREAS the City has reviewed the submitted application and evidence and has referred the 

project to various agencies for review, comments and recommendations; and 

WHEREAS the reviewing agencies have recommended approval or conditional approval; and 

WHEREAS staff has determined that the project is Statutorily Exempt pursuant to Section 

15305 of the CEQA Guidelines, Title 14, Chapter 3 of the California Code of Regulations; and 

WHEREAS pursuant to Section 15305 of the CEQA Guidelines this exemption applies to lot line 

adjustments with an average slope of less than 20% and does not result in any changes in land 

use or density. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the City finds that based on evidence on file and presented 
in the staff report that the proposed lot line adjustment complies with all of the following 
required findings: 

1. That the proposed lot line adjustment is consistent with the City's General 
Plan; and 

2. That the proposed lot line adjustment complies with the requirements and 
standards of the City's zoning regulations; and 

3. That the proposed lot line adjustment complies with the requirements and 
standards ofthe City's Building Regulations; and 

4. That the proposed lot line adjustment Statutorily Exempt pursuant to Section 
15305 of the CEQA Guidelines, Title 14, Chapter 3 of the California Code of 
Regulations. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the City of Rio Dell approves the 
proposed lot line adjustment subject to the recommended conditions of approval. 

Adams Lot Line Adjustment August 2016 

39 



APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Planning Commission of the City of Rio Dell at their meeting 
of August 23, 2016 by the following vote: 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the forgoing Resolution was PASSED and ADOPTED at a regular meeting 
of the Planning Commission of the City of Rio Dell on August 23, 2016 by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN : 

Nick Angeloff, Chairperson 

ATTEST: 

I, Karen Dunham, City Clerk for the City of Rio Dell, State of California, hereby certify the above 
and foregoing to be a full, true and correct copy of Resolution No. PC 098-2016 adopted by the 
Planning Commission of the City of Rio Dell on August 23, 2016. 

Karen Dunham, City Clerk, City of Rio Dell 

Adoms Lot Line Adjustment August 2016 

40 



675 Wildwood Avenue 

Rio Dell, CA 95562 

(707) 764-3532 

em Of 

~ DELL 

For Meeting of: August 23, 2016 

To: Planning Commission 

From: 

Through: 

Kevin Caldwell, Community Development Directore 

Kyle Knopp, City Manager 

Date: August 10, 2016 

Subject: Text Amendment Section 17.30.020 Accessory Uses and Buildings of the Rio 
Dell Municipal Code (RDMC) 

Recommendation: 

That the Planning Commission: 

1. Receive staffs report regarding amending Section 17.30.020 Accessory Uses and 
Buildings of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC); 

2. Open the public hearing, receive public input and deliberate; 

3. Find that: 

(a) The proposed text amendment is consistent with the General Plan; and 

(b) The proposed text amendment has been processed in accordance with the 
applicable provisions of the California Government Code and the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); 

4. Adopt Resolution No. PC 099-2016 recommending that the City Council amend Section 
17.30.020 Accessory Uses and Buildings of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC) to (1) 
establish maximum building heights and floor areas based on the size of the parcel and 
to allow for exceptions by the Planning Commission when certain findings can be made; 
and (2) establish regulations regarding cargo containers. 

AccessOty Buildings Height, Floor Area and Cargo Containers August 2016 

41 



Background 

Accessory Buildings Heights and Sizes: Staff has been contacted a number of times over 
the past few years regarding the construction of detached accessory structures and in particular 
the height limitation of fifteen (15) feet in the City's residential zones. Detached accessory 
buildings are allowed in residential zones, provided they are accessory to and subordinate to 
the principal use of the site and serves a purpose which does not change the character of the 
principal residential use. 

Many jurisdictions allow greater heights on larger parcels and exception provisions without the 
need for a variance. As such, staff is recommending the following amendments regarding 
building heights and size limitations to Section 17.30.020, Accessory Uses and Buildings of the 
Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC): 

(2) Detached aAccessory buildings in suburban residential, urban residential, residential 
multifamily and suburban zones shall conform to the following development standards Ret 
eJ(Geee Hi feel iR t:leigt:l t. See "Building Height" definition, Section 17.10.010. 

(a) Maximum Building Height 

{i\ Fifteen feet (15') on lots 20,000 square feet or less. 

(ii) Twenty-six feet (26') on lots larger than 20,000 square feet. 

(b) Maximum Gross Floor Area 

{i\ 1,000 square feet on lots 20,000 square feet or less. 

(ii) 1,500 sguare feet on lots larger than 20,000 square feet. 

(3) Exceptions. The Planning Commission may modify by use permit, the height and 
floor area requirements of this part. upon a showing of good cause, For any such 
modification, the Planning Commission shall be required to make the following findings: 

(a) The proposed modification will not adversely affect the-health, peace, comfort, or 
welfare of persons residing or working in the surrounding area; 

(b) The proposed modification will not be materially detrimental to the use, enjoyment. 
or valuation of property of other persons located in the vicinity of the site; and 

(c) The proposed modification will not jeopardize, endanger, or otherwise constitute a 
menace to the public health. safety, or general welfare. 

(d) In issuing a use permit, the Planning Commission may require such changes or 
alterations to the building as it may deem necessary to satisfy the findings specified in 
this part. Such changes or alterations may include, but shall not be limited to the 
following: 

• Building height 
• Building area 

Accessory Buildings Height, Floor Area and Cargo Containers August 2016 

42 



o Setback from property line 
• Screening or landscaping 

The "Exception" recommendations are for the most part the same exception provisions to 
exceed the allowable fence height regulations, Section 17.30.120 of the ROMe. 

Cargo/Shipping Containers: Another issue related to accessory 
structures is the use of cargo or shipping containers used as 
accessory structures. Staff has been contacted a number of times 
the past few years from those who would like to place and utilize 
cargo/shipping containers on their parcels and those who have 
expressed concern regarding the visual appearance of cargo 
containers. The City does not currently have any regulations 
regarding the use of cargo/shipping containers used as accessory structures. 

Millions of cargo/shipping containers have been manufactured in recent years to accommodate 
trade between North America and Asia. Used ones are plentiful and inexpensive. Not 
surprisingly, many property owners have found new uses for them as auxiliary storage 
buildings. Shipping containers are an increasingly common sight in the City and throughout the 
nation. In response many jurisdictions have enacted regulations regarding the placement and 
use of cargo/shipping containers the past few years to protect the character of neighborhoods 
and communities, reduce the potential for health and safety hazards, maintain and protect the 
visual qualities and property values of an area. 

It appears based on staffs review that larger urban communities do not allow cargo/shipping 
containers in residential zones. However, quite a few smaller urban and rural jurisdictions do 
allow one cargo/shipping container not exceeding 320 square feet in residential zones subject to 
some common general provisions, including: 

• Lot must be developed with the primary residential use; 
• Unit must be placed on a gravel pad; 
• Placed on the rear half of the lot; 
• Must meet setback requirements; 
• Must not exceed allowable lot coverage; 
• Must be painted a solid neutral color (I.e. beige, taupe and browns) or a color(s) to 

match the residence; 
• Containers cannot be stacked; 

Some jurisdictions require additional provisions to ensure the residential character and 
compatibility of the neighborhood, including: 

• Be sited or screened so as not to be visible from any public or private road that directly 
abuts the subject parcel; or 

• Be sited behind the primary structure (residence) and not prominently visible from the 
street; 

• Limit the size to 160 square feet (8' x 20') on lots less than 10,000 square feet 

Staff is also recommending that cargo/shipping containers be allowed in all zones on a 
temporary basis when utilized during construction or grading operations for the site where 
located and when utilized solely for the storage of supplies and equipment that are used for 
construction or grading on that site. 

Accessory Buildings Height, Floor Area and Cargo Containers August 2016 

43 



Staff is recommending that existing cargo containers not be considered legal nonconforming 
uses and that they be brought into compliance within 180 days after the effective date of the 
ordinance. 

Staff is recommending that Chapter 17.10, Definitions of the RDMC be amended to include the 
following definition of "Cargo/Shipping Container": 

Cargo/Shipping Container means a container made of steel or similar material which is 
designed for securing and protecting items for transport or storage. CargO/Shipping containers 
include, but are not limited to, containers commonly used as shipping containers on ships and 
railroads, and/or tractor trailers, PODS (Portable On Demand Storage) and other similar units. 

Procedural Requirements 

Pursuant to Section 17.35.010 of the City of Rio Dell Municipal Code, the following City 
procedures are required to amend the Ordinance: 

• An amendment may be initiated by one or more owners of property affected by the 
proposed amendment, as set out in Section 17.35.010(3), or by action of the Planning 
Commission, or the City Council. 

• The application of one or more property owners for the initiation of an amendment shall 
be filed in the office of the City Clerk on a form provided, accompanied by a filing fee. 

• Subject only to the rules regarding the placing of matters on the Planning Commission 
agenda, the matter shall be set for a public hearing. 

• Notice of hearing time and place shall be published once in a newspaper of general 
circulation at least ten calendar days before the hearing or by posting in at least three 
public places. 

• At the public hearing, the Planning Commission shall hear any person affected by the 
proposed amendment. The hearing may be continued from time to time. 

• Within 40 days of the conclusion of the hearing, the Planning Commission shall submit 
to the City Council a written report of recommendations and reasons therefore. 

• Subject only to the rules regarding the placing of matters on its agenda, the City Council, 
at its next regular meeting following the receipt of such report, shall cause the matter to 
be set for a public hearing. Notice of the time and place of the hearing shall be given as 
provided in Section 17 .35.010(5), hereof. 

• At the public hearing, the City Council shall hear any person affected by the proposed 
amendment. The hearing may be continued to a specified future date, but shall be 
concluded within 60 days of the commencement thereof. 

• The City Council shall not make any change in the proposed amendment until the 
proposed change has been referred to the Planning Commission for a report, and the 
Planning Commission report has been filed with the City Council. 

AccessOty Buildings Height, Floor Area and Cargo Containers August 2016 

44 



Zone Reclassification Required Findings 

1. The proposed amendment is consistent and compatible with the General Plan and any 
implementation programs that may be affected. 

There are a number of polices in the General Plan which protect the character of neighborhoods 
and communities, reduce the potential for health and safety hazards, maintain and protect the 
visual qualities and property values of an area. The proposed amendments are consistent and 
compatible with the General Plan. 

2. The proposed amendments have been processed in accordance with the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). 

Based on the nature of the project, staff has determined that the project is Statutorily Exempt 
pursuant to Section 15061(b) (3) of the CEQA Guidelines, Title 14, Chapter 3 of the California 
Code of Regulations. Pursuant to Section 15061(b) (3) of the CEQA Guidelines this exemption 
is covered by the general rule that CEQA applies only to projects which have the potential for 
causing a significant effect on the environment. Where it can be seen with certainty that there 
is no possibility that the project in question may have a significant effect on the environment, the 
project is not subject to CEQA. Based on the nature of the proposed amendments, to protect 
the character of neighborhoods and communities, reduce the potential for health and safety 
hazards, maintain and protect the visual qualities and property values of an area, staff believes 
there is no evidence to suggest that the minor amendments will have a significant effect on the 
environment. 

Attachments 

Attachment 1: Resolution No. PC 099-2016 recommending that the City Council amend Section 
17.30.020 Accessory Uses and Buildings of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC) 
to (1) establish maximum building heights and noor areas based on the size of 
the parcel and to allow for exceptions by the Planning Commission when certain 
findings can be made; and (2) establish regulations regarding cargo containers. 

Accessory Buildings Height, Floor Area and Cargo Containers August 2016 

45 



RESOLUTION NO. PC 099-2016 

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF RIO DELL 

RECOMMENDING THAT THE CITY COUNCIL AMEND SECTION 17.30.020 

ACCESSORY USES AND BUILDINGS OF THE RIO DELL MUNICIPAL CODE (ROMe) TO 

(1) ESTABLISH MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHTS AND FLOOR AREAS BASED ON THE 

SIZE OF THE PARCEL AND TO ALLOW FOR EXCEPTIONS BY THE PLANNING 

COMMISSION WHEN CERTAIN FINDINGS CAN BE MADE; AND (2) ESTABLISH 

REGULATIONS REGARDING CARGO CONTAINERS. 

WHEREAS staff has been contacted a number of times over the past few years regarding the 
construction of detached accessory structures and in particular the height limitation of fifteen 
(15) feet in the City's residential zones; and 

WHEREAS detached accessory buildings are allowed in residential zones, provided they are 
accessory to and subordinate to the principal use of the site and serves a purpose which does 
not change the character of the principal residential use; and 

WHEREAS many jurisdictions allow greater heights on larger parcels and exception provisions 

without the need for a variance; and 

WHEREAS the Planning Commission is recommending the amendments regarding building 

heights and size limitations to Section 17 .30.020, Accessory Uses and Buildings of the Rio Dell 

Municipal Code (ROMe); and 

WHEREAS the Planning Commission recommends that the allowable height of detached 
accessory structures on lots less than 20,000 square feet in size be limited to fifteen (15) feet; 
and 

WHEREAS the Planning Commission recommends that the allowable height of detached 
accessory structures on lots greater than 20,000 square feet in size be limited to twenty-six (26) 
feet; and 

AccessOl)l Structures - Cargo Containers PC Resolution August 23, 2016; Resolution No. 099-2016 

ATTACHMENT 1 46 



WHEREAS the Planning Commission recommends that the allowable area of detached 
accessory structures on lots less than 20,000 square feet in size be limited to 1,000 square feet; 
and 

WHEREAS the Planning Commission recommends that the allowable area of detached 
accessory structures on lots greater than 20,000 square feet in size be limited to 1,500 square 
feet; and 

WHEREAS the Planning Commission also recommends exception provisions to allow for greater 
heights and larger sizes based on specific findings; and 

WHEREAS another issue related to accessory structures is the use of cargo or shipping 
containers used as accessory structures; and 

WHEREAS staff has been contacted a number of times the past few years from those who 
would like to place and utilize cargo/shipping containers on their parcels and those who have 
expressed concern regarding the visual appearance of cargo containers; and 

WHEREAS the City does not currently have any regulations regarding the use of cargo/shipping 
containers used as accessory structures; and 

WHEREAS shipping containers are an increasingly common sight in the City and throughout the 
nation; and 

WHEREAS in response many jurisdictions have enacted regulations regarding the placement 
and use of cargo/shipping containers the past few years to protect the character of 
neighborhoods and communities, reduce the potential for health and safety hazards, maintain 
and protect the visual qualities and property values of an area; and 

WHEREAS the Planning Commission recommends allowing one cargo/shipping container not 
exceeding _ square feet in residential zones subject to specific performance standards 
intended to protect the character of neighborhoods and maintain and protect the visual 
qualities and property values of an area; and 

WHEREAS the City has reviewed and processed the proposed amendment in conformance with 
Sections 65350 - 65362 of the California Government Code; and 

WHEREAS the City has reviewed and processed the proposed amendment in conformance with 
Section 17.35.010 ofthe City of Rio Dell Municipal Code; and 

WHEREAS the City finds that based on evidence on file and presented in the staff report that 
the proposed amendment is consistent and compatible with the General Plan and any 
implementation programs that may be affected; and 

Accessory Structures - Cargo Containers PC Resolution August 23, 2016; Resolution No, 099-2016 

47 



WHEREAS the proposed amendment has been processed in accordance with the applicable 
provisions of the California Government Code and the California Environmental Quality Act 

(CEQA); and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the City of Rio Dell finds 
that: 

1. The proposed amendments are consistent with the General Plan and any applicable specific 

plan; and 

2. The proposed amendments are Statutorily Exempt pursuant to Section 15061(b) (3) of the 
CEQA Guidelines, Title 14, Chapter 3 of the California Code of Regulations. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the City of Rio 
Dell recommends that the City Council approve the proposed amendments to amend Section 
17.30.020 Accessory Uses and Buildings ofthe Rio Dell Municipal Code (ROMe) to (1) establish 
maximum building heights and floor areas based on the size of the parcel and to allow for 
exceptions by the Planning Commission when certain findings can be made; and (2) establish 
regulations regarding cargo containers. 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the forgoing Resolution was PASSED and ADOPTED at a regular meeting 
of the Planning Commission of the City of Rio Dell on August 23, 2016 by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

Nick Angeloff, Chairperson 

ATIEST: 

I, Karen Dunham, City Clerk for the City of Rio Dell, State of California, hereby certify the above 
and foregoing to be a full, true and correct copy of Resolution No. PC 099-2016 adopted by the 

Planning Commission of the City of Rio Dell on August 23, 2016. 

Karen Dunham, City Clerk, City of Rio Dell 

Accessory Structures - Cargo Containers PC Resolution August 23, 2016; Resolution No, 099-2016 

48 



675 Wildwood Avenue 

Rio Dell, CA 95562 

(707) 764-3532 

To: Planning Commission 

For Meeting of: August 23, 2016 

From: Kevin Caldwell, Community Development Director C2. 
Through: 

Date: 

Subject: 

Kyle Knopp, City Manager 

August 19, 2016 

Medical Marijuana Commercial Land Use Regulations, Section 17.30.19S of the 

Rio Dell Municipal Code (ROMe). 

Recommendation: 

That the Planning Commission: 

1. Receive staff's report regarding changes made to the April 12'h, 2016 Planning 

Commission recommendations regarding Medical Marijuana Commercial Land Use 

Regulations, Section 17.30.195 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code; 

Discussion 

A number of changes have been made to the April 12'h, 2016 Planning Commission's 

recommended Ordinance No. 342-2016. Section 17.35.010 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code 

requires that any changes be referred back to the Planning Commission. Below is a copy of the 

referenced section: 

• The City Council shall not make any change in the proposed amendment until the 

proposed change has been referred to the Planning Commission for a report, and the 

Planning Commission report has been filed with the City Council. 

Medical Marijuana Commercial Land Use Regulations PC August 23. 2016 

49 



The proposed changes do not require a public hearing and comment, but only the need to 

report the proposed changes to the Commission. The changes are actually more restrictive 

than the Planning Commission recommendations . Because the original Planning Commission 

recommended regulations, Ordinance No. 342-2016 was not approved, staff has been advised 

procedurally that the current recommended regulations are considered a new ordinance. 

Ordinance No. 348-2016 is attached for your review. The Planning Commissions role is to 

review and comment only on those recommended changes. The Commission's comments 

and/or recommendations are then filed with the City Council. 

The primary change is that all cannabis related activities be located north of the Eel River in the 

area commonly known as the Sawmill Annexation Area. Below is a summary of the changes: 

• limit all cannabis related activities to the area known as the Sawmill Annexation area. Pages 7, 

8 and 9 of the Draft CMCLUO; 

• Eliminate dispensaries as an allowed use within the City, including the Sawmill Annexation area; 

• Clarify the difference between Outdoor (open field) and Greenhouse cultivations. Definitions 

pages 5 and 6 of the Draft CMCLUO; 

• Clearly prohibit Outdoor-Open Filed cultivation within the City. Definitions page 6 and General 

Provisions pages 7, 8 9 and 10 of the Draft CMCLUO; 

• Eliminate odor discharges to neighboring properties from cultivation and manufacturing 

facilities. Pages 14 and 18 of the Draft CMCLUO; 

• Require that employees involved in cultivation and processing activities have access to coveralls 

in addition to facemasks and gloves. Page 15 of the Draft CMCLUO; 

• Require that cultivation, processing, manufacturing facilities, testing laboratories and 

dispensaries be alarmed with either an audible or silent alarm system that are operated, 

monitored by a recognized security company. Page 12 of the Draft CMCLUO; 

• Require that security cameras shall be installed and maintained in good condition, and 

used in an on-going manner with at least 240 concurrent hours of digitally recorded 

documentation in a format approved by the Planning Commission for cultivation, processing, 

manufacturing facilities, testing laboratories and dispensaries. T he cameras shall be in use 24 

hours per day, 7 days per week. The areas to be covered by the security cameras shall include, 

but are not limited to, the public areas, processing areas, storage areas, employee areas, all 

doors and windows, and any other areas as determined to be necessary by the Planning 

Commission. Page 12 of the Draft CMCLUO. 

Medical Marijuana Commercial Land Use Regulations PC August 23. 2016 

50 



Another item of discussion was the possibility to require a construction deposit and/or 

performance bond for new cannabis related facilities. Performance bonds are typically 

associated with public improvements and/or public projects. Staff is checking with the City 

Attorney on the applicability of requiring a construction deposit and/or performance bond for 

new cannabis related facilities. 

Attachment 1: Draft Ordinance No. 348-2016, Medical Marijuana Commercial Land Use 
Regulations. Section 17.30.195 ofthe Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC). 

Medical Marijuana Commercial Land Use Regulations PC August 23. 2016 

S1 



ORDINANCE NO. 348-2016 

Crrv Ci 

~ ELL 
---

An ordinance establishing Section 17.30.195 of Title 17 of the Rio Dell Municipal 
Code relating to the Commercial Cultivation, Processing, Manufacturing and 

Distribution of Cannabis for Medical Use. 

The City Council of the City of Rio Dell ordains as follows: 

WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 65850, et seq. authorizes counties and cities to 
regulate land use, including agriculture, and to adopt and amend zoning ordinances for such 
purposes, and sets forth procedures governing the adoption and amendment of such 
ordinances; and 

WHEREAS, on October 9, 2015 Governor Brown approved a package of three bills enacted by 
the legislature on September 11, 2015, SB 643, AB 243, and AB 266, providing for 
comprehensive, concurrent regulation and licensing by state and local governments of medical 
cannabis as an agricultural product, including its cultivation, processing, testing, manufacture, 
distribution, transportation, dispensing, and delivery; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 11362.777, subsection (c)(3l, "A city, county, or city and county's 
locally issued conditional permit requirements must be at least as stringent as the Department 
of Food and Agriculture's state licensing requirements"; and 

WHEREAS, the state statutes establishing a regulated, legitimate basis for commercial 
medical cannabis economic activities under the authorization of state law provide an 
opportunity to bring unregulated activities into compliance with existing law and ameliorate 
adverse environmental impacts, while bringing it out of the shadows of an underground, 
black-market economy into a legitimate agricultural and commercial contributor to the local 
and state economy; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Rio Dell has previously adopted a land use ordinance governing 
indoor and outdoor cultivation of medical cannabis for personal use; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held five public hearings on the proposed Ordinance 
governing the Commercial Cultivation, Processing, Testing, Manufacturing and Distribution of 
Cannabis for Medical Use to receive a reports on the draft ordinance, as well as evidence and 
public testimony; and 

Commercial Medical Cannabis Land Use Ordinance; Ordinance 348·2016 - Rtvised August 16, 2016 Pagel 

ATTACHMENT 1 52 



WHEREAS, the Planning Commission reviewed and considered the report, evidence, and other 
testimony presented to the Commission, and recommended revisions to the draft land use 
Ordinance Governing the Commercial Cultivation of Commercial Cultivation, Processing, 
Manufacturing and Distribution for Medical Use; and 

WHEREAS the City has reviewed and processed the proposed amendment in conformance with 
Sections 65350 - 65362 of the California Government Code; and 

WHEREAS the City has reviewed and processed the proposed amendment in conformance with 
Section 17.35.010 of the City of Rio Dell Municipal Code; and 

WHEREAS the City finds that based on evidence on file and presented in the staff report that 
the proposed amendment is consistent and compatible with the General Plan and any 
implementation programs that may be affected; and 

WHEREAS the proposed amendment has been processed in accordance with the applicable 
provisions of the California Government Code and the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEGA); and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Rio Dell does hereby 
ordain as follows: 

SECTION 1. Section 17.30.195 ofTitle 17 ofthe Rio De" Municipal Code is hereby added as 

follows: 

(1) Authority and Title 

This Section shall be known as the Medical Cannabis Commercial land Use Ordinance 

("MCClUO"), which provides for the regulation of Commercial Cultivation, Processing, 

Manufacturing and Distribution of cannabis for medical use, as defined in this Code, located 

within the City of Rio Dell 

(2) Purpose and Intent 

The purpose of this Section is to establish land use regulations concerning the commercial 

cultivation, proceSSing, manufacturing and distribution of cannabis for medical use within the 

City of Rio Dell in order to limit and control such cultivation in coordination with the State of 

California in the implementation of the Medical Cannabis Regulation and Safety Act 

(MCRSA)(SS 643, AS 266, and AS 243 as adopted September 11, 2015, and approved by the 

Governor on October 9, 2015), so as to ensure the health and safety of employees, 

independent contractors, visitors to the area, neighboring property owners, and end users of 

medical cannabis; to protect the environment from harm to streams, fish, and wildlife; to 

Commercial Mtdicol Cannabis Land Use Ordinance; Ordinanct 348-2016 - Revised August 16, 2016 Poge2 

53 



ensure the security of the medical cannabis; and to safeguard against the diversion of medical 
cannabis for non-medical purposes. It is intended to address the City of Rio Deli's prerogative 
to permit, and control commercial cultivation, processing, manufacturing and distribution of 
cannabis for medical cannabis as set forth in the MCRSA, including, but not limited to the 
provisions of Business and Professions Code Sections 19315, 19316, 19320, 19322, 19332, and 
19360 and Health and Safety Code Section 11362.777, in conjunction with state licensing 
requirements, in order to protect the pUblic health, safety, and welfare of the residents of the 
City of Rio Dell, and to reduce or eliminate any adverse environmental effects of existing 
commercial cannabis cultivation operations in the City of Rio Dell, and to prevent adverse 
environmental effects of any new commercial cannabis activities which may be permitted in 
the future in accordance with this Section and state law. This Section is not intended to 
supersede the provisions of Section 17.30.190 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code concerning 
cultivation of medical cannabis for personal use. 

(3) Applicability and Interpretation 

(a) These regulations shall apply to the location and permitting of commercial cultivation, 

processing, manufacturing, and distribution of cannabis for medical use in zoning districts 
within which such use is authorized, as specified in this Section. 

(b) The commercial cultivation, processing, manufacturing, and distribution of cannabis for 
medical use within the jurisdiction of the City of Rio Dell shall be controlled by the 
provisions of this Section, regardless of whether those activities existed or occurred prior to 
the adoption of this Section. 

(c) Nothing in this Section is intended, nor shall it be construed, to exempt the commercial 
cultivation, processing, manufacturing, and distribution of cannabis for medical use, from 
compliance with all other applicable zoning, and land use regulations, as well as compliance 
with any applicable state laws. 

(d) Nothing in this Section is intended, nor shall it be construed, to exempt the commercial 
cultivation, processing, manufacturing, and distribution of cannabis for medical use, as 
defined herein, from any and all applicable local and state construction, electrical, 
plumbing, land use, water rights, waste water discharge, streambed alteration, or any other 
environmental, building or land use standards or permitting requirements. 

(e) Nothing in this Section is intended, nor shall it be construed, to preclude a landlord or 
property owner from limiting or prohibiting commercial cultivation, processing, 
manufacturing, or distribution of cannabis for medical use on private property. 

(f) The definitions in this Section are intended to apply solely to the regulations in this section. 

Commercial Medical Cannabis Land Use Ordinance; Ordinance 348-2016 - Revised August 16. 2016 Page 3 

54 



(g) Notwithstanding the fact that Health and Safety Code Section 11362.777 declares that 
medical cannabis is an agricultural product for purposes of that Section and the MCRSA, 
Business and Professions Code Section 19300, et. seq., the commercial cultivation of 
cannabis for medical use is a highly regulated specialty crop and cultivation and processing 
of that specialty crop shall not be allowed as a principal permitted use unless a Conditional 
Use Permit is first obtained from the City of Rio Dell, and the person engaged in such activity 
has obtained all state licenses and permits which may be required by the applicable state 
licensing authorities whenever such licenses become available. 

(4) Release of Liability and Hold Harmless 

As a condition of approval for any Conditional Use Permit approved for the commercial 
cultivation, processing, manufacturing, testing, or distribution of cannabis for medical use, as 
defined herein, the owner or permittee shall indemnify and hold harmless the City of Rio Dell 
and its agents, officers, elected officials, and employees for any claims, damages, or injuries 
brought by affected property owners or other third parties due to the commercial cultivation, 
processing, manufacture, or distribution of cannabis for medical use and for any claims brought 

by any person for problems, injuries, damages, or liabilities of any kind that may arise out of the 
commercial cultivation, processing, manufacture, or distribution of cannabis for medical use. 

(5) Penalties and Enforcement 

All of the remedies provided for in this Section shall be cumulative and not exclusive of 

remedies available for violations under any other Section of the Rio Dell Municipal Code and 
theMMRSA. 

Any violation of this Section, including, but not limited to failure to obtain and maintain in good 
standing the required Conditional Use Permit specified in this Section, shall be, and the same 
hereby is declared to be, a public nuisance and unlawful and shall be subject to injunction, 

abatement or any other administrative, civil, or criminal remedy available to the City under the 
applicable state and City laws, including those set forth in Section 17.40.020 of the Rio Dell 
Municipal Code. 

(6) Definitions 

"Area of Traditional Tribal Cultural Affiliation" means geographic areas of historic occupancy 
and traditional cultural use by local indigenous peoples (California Native American Tribes), as 
shown on the latest mapping prepared by the County of Humboldt Planning & Building 
Department, created from geographic information supplied by the Tribes of Humboldt County. 

"Cannabis" means all parts of the plant Cannabis sativa Linnaeus, Cannabis indica, or Cannabis 
ruderalis, or any other strain or varietal of the genus Cannabis that may exist or hereafter be 

Commercial Medical Cannabis Land Use Ordinance; Ordinance 348·2016 - Revised August 16. 2016 Page4 

55 



discovered or developed that has psychoactive or medicinal properties, whether growing or 
not, including the seeds thereof. "Cannabis" also means cannabis as defined by Section 11018 
of the Health and Safety Code as enacted by Chapter 1407 of the Statutes of 1972. For the 
purpose of this section, "cannabis" does not mean "industrial hemp" as defined by Section 
81000 of the Food and Agriculture Code or Section 11018.5 of the Health and Safety Code. 

"Commercial Cannabis Cultivation" means any activity involving the planting, growing, 
harvesting, drying, curing, grading, or trimming of cannabis for medical use, including nurseries, 
that is intended to be transported, processed, manufactured, distributed, dispensed, delivered, 
or sold in accordance with the Medical Cannabis Regulation and Safety Act (MCRSA) for use by 
medical cannabis patients in California pursuant to the CompaSSionate Use Act of 1996 
(Proposition 215), found at Section 11362.5 of the Health and Safety Code. 

"Cultivation Area" the area encompassed by the perimeter surrounding the area within which 
cannabis plants are cultivated. Where plants are cultivated in separated pots, beds or plots, the 
cumulative total surface area of all such pots, beds or plots, and the surface area underneath 
the maximum anticipated extent of vegetative growth of cannabis plants to be grown in 
separate pots, beds or plots, used in combination for a single permitted cultivation operation. 

"Cultivation site" means the location or a facility where medical cannabis is planted, grown, 
harvested, dried, cured, graded, or trimmed, or that does all or any combination of those 
activities, except where drying, curing, grading or trimming is otherwise prohibited. 

"Dispensary" means a facility where medical cannabiS, medical cannabis products, or devices 
(excluding pipes and water pipes) for the use of medical cannabis products are offered, either 
individually or in any combination, for retail sale. 

"Distribution Facility" means the location or -a facility where a person licensed with a Type 11 
license pursuant to the MCRSA conducts the business of procuring medical cannabis from 
licensed cultivators or manufacturers for sale to licensed dispensaries, and the inspection, 
quality assurance, batch testing by a Type 8 licensee, storage, labeling, packaging and other 
processes prior to transport to licensed dispensaries. 

"Greenhouse" means a structure. primarily of glass or clear poly-film or polycarbonate 
plastic. in which temperature and humidity can be controlled for the cultivation or protection 

of plants. 

"Indoor" means indoor cultivation using excluSively artificial lighting. 

"Licensee" means a person issued a state license under the MCRSA to engage in commercial 
cannabis activity. 

Commercial Medicol CannabiS Land Use Ordinance; Ordinance 348·2016 - Revised August 16, 2016 PageS 

S6 



"Manufacturing Facility" means a process whereby the raw agricultural product is transformed 

into a concentrate, an edible product, or a topical product, and the production, preparation, 

propagation, or compounding of medical cannabis or medical cannabis products, directly or 
indirectly, by extraction methods, independently by means of chemical synthesis, or by a 

combination of extraction and chemical synthesis. 

"Mixed-light" means cultivation occurring in a greenhouse using a combination of natural and 

supplemental artificial lighting at a maximum threshold as set forth in performance standards in 

Section 17.30.190(8) of this ordinance, or as to be determined by the Department of Food and 

Agriculture, whichever is less. 

"Nursery" means a licensee that produces only clones, immature plants, seeds, and other 
agricultural products for retail or wholesale sale, used specifically for the planting, propagation, 
and cultivation of medical cannabis. 

"Outdoor" means outdoor open-field (not in a greenhouse) cultivation using no artificial 

lighting. Outdoor cultivation as defined herein is not allowed in the City of Rio Dell. 

"Person" means an individual, firm, partnership, jOint venture, association, corporation, limited 
liability company, estate, trust, business trust, receiver, syndicate, or any other group or 
combination acting as a unit and includes the plural as well as the singular number. 

"Premises" means a legal parcel compliant with the Subdivision Map Act, or a leasehold interest 
in agricultural land for agricultural purposes of outdoor or mixed-light cultivation or processing 
of medical cannabis, or space in an industrial or commercial building for purposes of indoor 
cultivation, processing, manufacture, or distribution of medical cannabis. 

"Processing Facility" means the location or facility where medical cannabis is dried, cured, 
graded, trimmed, and/or packaged by or under the control of one or more licensed cultivators, 
at a location separate from the cultivation site where the medical cannabis is grown and 
harvested. 

"State license," means a state license issued pursuant to the MCRSA. 

"Testing laboratory" means a facility, entity, or site in the state that offers or performs tests of 

medical cannabis or medical cannabis products and that is both of the following: 

(1) Accredited by an accrediting body that is independent from all other persons involved in 

the medical cannabis industry on the state; and 

(2) Registered with the Department of Public Health. 

Commercial Medical Cannabis Land Use Ordinance; Ordinance 348·2016 - R~vised August 16, 2016 PageS 

57 



"Tribal Cultural Resources" means sites, features, places, cultural landscapes, sacred places, and 
objects with cultural value to a California Native American tribe, including unique 
archaeological resources and historical resources as described under sections 21074, 
21083.2(g), and 21084.1 of the Public Resources Code, respectively. Tribal Cultural Resource 
shall also include sites or resources identified by the tribe through an action of the Tribal 
Councilor equivalent body. 

(7) General Provisions 

This section applies to all faciiities and activities involved in the Commercial Cultivation, 
Processing, Manufacturing, Testing or Distribution of cannabis for medical use, as defined in 

this Section. 

(a) All commercial cultivation, processing, manufacturing, testing, or distribution of cannabis 
for medical use shall operate in compliance with this Section, as well as all applicable state 
and local laws and conditions as deemed appropriate by the Planning Commission and/or 

the City Council. 

(b) Outeieer Greenhouse and Mixed-Light commercial cultivation of cannabis for medical use 
shall be conducted entirely within a fully enclosed, secure and lockable greenhouse and 
shall be conditionally permitted in the Rural (R) Industrial CommercialllC) and Natural 
Resources (NR) designations located in the Sawmill Annexation area, pursuant to the 
"OlltQ8Br" "Greenhouse" and "Mixed-Light" parcel size and cultivation area provisions 

described in Table 8.1 and subject to the conditions and limitations set forth in this Section 
and as deemed appropriate by the Planning Commission and/or the City Council. 

(c) Indoor commercial cultivation of cannabis for medical use shall be conditionally permitted 
in the Industrial Commercial (IC); Rural (R) and Natural Resources (NR) designations located 
in the Sawmill Annexation area pursuant to the "Indoor" parcel size and cultivation area 
provisions described in Table 8.1 and subject to the conditions and limitations set forth in 

this Section and as deemed appropriate by the Planning Commission and/or the City 

Council. 

(d) Processing Facilities accessory and appurtenant to on site cultivation for commercial 
cannabis for medical use shall be a conditionally permitted use in the Industrial Commercial 
(IC); Rural (R) and Natural Resources (NR) designations located in the Sawmill Annexation 
area zBRiRg eiistriets, subject to a Conditional Use Permit and the conditions and limitations 

set forth in this Section and as deemed appropriate by the Planning Commission and/or the 
City Council. 

(e) Stand alone, independent Processing Facilities for commercial cannabis for medical use shall 

be a conditionally permitted use in the Industrial Commercial (IC) deSignation zoning district 

Commercial Medical Cannabis Land Use Ordinance; Ordinance 348-2016 - Revised August 16, 2016 Page 7 

58 



located in the Sawmill AnneKation area. subject to a Conditional Use Permit and the 
conditions and limitations set forth in this Section and as deemed appropriate by the 
Planning Commission and/or the City Council. 

(f) Extraction manufacturing of commercial cannabis concentrates for medical use shall be a 
conditionally permitted use in the Industrial Commercial (IC) designation located in the 
Sawmill AnneKation area. subject to a Conditional Use Permit and the conditions and 
limitations set forth in this Section and as deemed appropriate by the Planning Commission 
and/or the City Council. 

(g) Manufacturing of edibles (commercial kitchens) for medical use shall be a conditionally 
permitted use in the Industrial Commercial (IC). re ..... A 'eAter (Tq, NeigRi3erRssd 'eAter 

(~K) aAEi 'SFAFA~Ait'f 'sFAFAereial (") designation located in the Sawmill AnneKation area 
subject to a Conditional Use Permit and the conditions and limitations set forth in this 

Section and as deemed appropriate by the Planning Commission and/or the City Council. 

(h) Wholesale Distribution Facilities for commercial cannabis for medical use shall be a 

conditionally permitted use in the Industrial Commercial (IC) designation located in the 
Sawmill AnneKation area subject to a Conditional Use Permit and the conditions and 
limitations set forth in this Section and as deemed appropriate by the Planning Commission 
and/or the City Council. 

(i) Nurseries, as defined herein, producing commercial cannabis nursery products for retail 
sale, bulk wholesale sale or to supply retail nursery outlets shall be a conditionally 

permitted use in the Industrial Commercial (IC), R~ra' (R) and Natural Resources (NR) 
designation57 located in the Sawmill AnneKation area subject to a Conditional Use Permit 
and the conditions and limitations set forth in this Section and as deemed appropriate by 
the Planning Commission and/or the City Council. 

(i) Testing laboratories as herein defined shall be conditionally permitted in the Industrial 
Commercial (IC), TS'NA 'eAter (Tq, NeigRi3srheeEl 'eAter (~Iq aAEi CeFAFA~Aity CSFAFAereial 
(fc.) designation located in the Sawmill AnneKation area subject to a Conditional Use 
Permit and the conditions and limitations set forth in this Section and as deemed 
appropriate by the Planning Commission and/or the City Council. 

ill gispeRsaries as RerelA def;iAed shaH Be caREi itisRally fleFFf\itted iR tt:1e rewR GeAter ~TC) 
ElesigAatiQR 18'3te" IR the 5a"\'Alili AAAeKati8A area 5~bjeet te a CeREl itleRal Use Pert:Rit 
3REi t~e C9AEHtiaRS aRf:ilimitatisAs set JeRk fR tl=l is §eetieR aRd as eeeFRed appr:epriate BY 
1M PtaRAiRg (eMmissisR aAe/SF tRe City Ge~REjl. 

Commercial Medical Cannabis Land US~ Ordinance; Ordinance 348·2016 - Revised August 16, 2016 Pag.S 

59 



!l!1 ill Other than as enumerated in this Section, the commercial cultivation, processing, 
manufacturing, testing or distribution of cannabis for medical use in any other zoning 
district in the City of Rio Dell is prohibited. 

fij ill The fact that an applicant possesses other types of state or county or city permits, 
licenses or other entitlements does not exempt the applicant from the requirement of 
obtaining a Conditional Use Permit from the City of Rio Dell to engage in the commercial 
cultivation, processing, manufacturing, testing or distribution of cannabis for medical use 
within the jurisdiction of the City. 

(m) ill No more than four commercial cannabis activity permits of any type enumerated in 
Sections 17.30.195(8)(b) through 17.30.195(8)(g) of this ordinance may be issued to a single 
person, as defined herein. For purposes of this limitation, any natural person who owns or 
controls any interest, directly or indirectly, in a firm, partnership, jOint venture, association, 
cooperative, collective, corporation, limited liability company, estate, trust, business trust, 
receiver, syndicate, or any other group or combination acting as a unit, shall be collectively 
considered a single person with those entities. 

(8) Cultivation Locations, Parcel Sizes and Allowable Canopies 

The 18Eati8R sf commercial cultivation of cannabis for medical use within the City shall be 
located in the Sawmill Annexation area aetermiAea by the ZSAiAg aesigAatisA aAa the size sf 
the flaree l SA 'IIhie/l the aEti 'At'l is ts be E8AallEtea in accordance with the following table: 

Table 8.1 
Cultivation Locations, Parcel Sizes and Allowable Canopies 

OlltEi99F Greenhouse & Mixed-Light Cultivation 
Rllra l IR) Industrial Commercial /lC) and Natural Resources (NR) Designations 

Type 1 & IB, "Specialty Ollta88F 
Greenhouse & Specialty Mixed Light" 

Type 2 & 2B, "Small OlltassF Greenhouse & 

Small Mixed Light" 

Type 3 & 3B, "Olltas9F Greenhouse & Mixed 
Light" 

< 1 acre 

1-2.49 acres 

2.5-4.99 acres 

5.0- 19.99 acres 

~ 20 acres 

1,000 sq. ft. 

2,000 sq. ft. 

5,000 sq. ft. 

10,000 sq. ft. 

22,000 sq. ft. 

Comm~rcjal Medicol Cannabis Land Use Ordinance; Ordinance 348·2016 - R~\lised August 16, 2016 Poge9 

60 



Indoor Cultivation 
Industrial Commercial (IC) Designations 

.~ 
, 

• • .. . • • 
Type lA, "Specialty Indoor" < 1 acre 5,000 sq. ft . 

Type 2A, "Small Indoor" 1.0· 1.99 acres 10,000 sq. ft. 

Type 3A, "Indoor" 2; 2 acres 22,000 sq. ft. 

Indoor Cultivation 
Rllral (R) aRe! Natural Resources (NR) Designations 

.~ . . • ... • • '-
Type 1A, "Specialty Indoor" < 1 acre 1,000 sq. ft. 

1-1.99 acres 2,000 sq. ft. 

2.0-4.99 acres 5,000 sq. ft. 

Type 2A, "Small Indoor" 5.0- 9.99 acres 10,000 sq. ft . 

Type 3A, "Indoor" 2; 10 acres 22,000 sq. ft . 

Nurseries 

Industrial Commercial (IC), Rllral (R) and Natural Resources (NR) designations 

Type 4, "Nursery" N/A 43,560 sq. ft. 
State limit 

(a) Processing of cannabis that is cultivated pursuant to these regulations may occur at the 

cultivation site subject to the Processing Performance Standards and Employee Safety 

Practices enumerated in Section 17.30.195(10) thru 17.30.195(13) are met. 

(b) Multiple applicants may obtain a Conditional Use Permit for 81olte!88r greenhouse cultivation, 

mixed-light cultivation, or both, on one legal parcel so long as the cumulative cultivation area 

is within one contiguous cultivation footprint that does not exceed the total cultivation area 

size limits set forth in Table 8.1, Cultivation Locations, Parcel Sizes and Allowable Canopies. 

(c) A combination of cultivation types may be allowed in the same zone (e.g. 811tEl88r 

greenhouse and, mixed light cultivation, or indoor cultivation and processing) that are for a 

total area equal to or less than the cultivated area size limit for the size of the underlying 

parcel. 

Commercial Medical Cannabis Land Use Ordinance; Ordinance 348·2016 - Revised August 16, 2016 Page 10 

61 



(9) Application Requirements for All MCClUO Conditional Use Permits: 

(a) A completed standard application form for a Conditional Use Permit with the required 

deposit. 

(b) If the applicant is not the record title owner of parcel, written consent of the owner for the 

application with original signature and notary acknowledgement. 

(c) A Site Plan shall be submitted showing the entire parcel, including easements, streams and 

other surface water features, and the location and area for cultivation on the parcel with 

dimensions of the area for cultivation and setbacks from property lines. The site plan shall 

also include all areas of ground disturbance or surface water disturbance associated with 

cultivation activities, including: access roads, water diversions, culverts, ponds, dams, 
graded flats, and other related features. If the area for cultivation is within X mile (1,320 

ft.) of a school, the site plan shall include dimensions showing that the distance from the 

location of such features to the nearest point of the cultivation area is at least BOO 1000 

feet. 

(d) A Plan of Operations shall be submitted that includes, describes and addresses the 

following: 

(i) A complete project description including the proposed use(s), hours and days of 
operation, number of employees, and the duration (temporary, seasonal or 
permanent) of the operation. 

(ii) The number of daily and/or weekly incoming and outgoing deliveries 

(iii) A Security Plan that addresses the cultivation, storage, processing. manufacturing and 
testing of any medical cannabis, including but not limited to video monitoring and commercial 
alarm systems. 

(iv) A Waste Management/Disposal Plan shall be submitted describing any produced 

wastes, including by-products, recycling, reusing, recovery, storage, diversion and 

handling and disposal. 

(v) A description of the storage or use of any solvents, fertilizers, pesticides, fungicides, 
rodenticide, or herbicides. 

(vi) A description of any discharge or emissions the operation will generate. 

(vii) A description of any noise level increase as a result of the operation. 

(viii) A description of the operation's use of public facilities such as roads, water or sewer 

Commercial Medical Cannabis Land Use Ordinance; Ordinance 348-2016 - Rtvised August 16. 2016 Page 11 

62 



systems. 

(ix) A description of any proposed water source, storage, conservation and use; 
drainage, runoff and erosion control; watershed and habitat protection. 

(e ) A Security Plan shall be submitted that includes, describes and addresses the following: 

(j) Security cameras shall be installed and maintained in good condition, and 
used in an on-going manner with at least 240 concurrent hours of digitally recorded 
documentation in a format approved by the Planning Commission. The cameras shall 
be In use 24 hours per day, 7 days per week. The areas to be covered by the security 
cameras shall include. but are not limited to, the public areas, processing areas, 
storage areas, employee areas, all doors and windows, and any other areas as 
determined to be necessary by the Planning Commission. 

liil The facility shall be alarmed with an audible Interior and/or exterior silent alarm 
system, lin less · .... ai ... eEl fo r eKtenliatinB eirellmstanees II', tile Planning Cemmissi9R that 
is operated and monitored by a recognized security company. deemed acceptable by 
the Planning Commission. Any change in the security company shall be subject to the 
approval of the City Manager or his designee. All current contact information 
regarding the medical cannabis facility's security company shall be provided to the 
City Manager or designee. 

~ ill Tribal Consultation: For any ground disturbing activities, acknowledge that the City will 
consult with the local Wiyot Tribe, including their Tribal Historic Preservation Officer (THPO) 
or other tribal representatives, before the approval of any Conditional Use Permit. During 
this process, the tribe may request that operations associated with the Conditional Use 
Permit be designed to avoid, minimize or mitigate impacts to Tribal Cultural Resources, as 
defined herein. Examples include, but are not limited to: conducting a site visit with the 
THPO or their deSignee to the existing or proposed cultivation site. requiring that a 
profeSSional cultural resources survey be performed, or requiring that a tribal cultural 
monitor be retained during project-related ground disturbance within areas of sensitivity or 
concern. 

~ {g} Community Relations: Each medical cannabis facility shall provide the City Manager or 
designee with the name, phone number, facsimile number, and email address of an on-site 
community relations or staff person or other representative to whom the City can provide 
notice if there are operating problems associated with the medical cannabis facility or refer 
members of the public who may have any concerns or complaints regarding the operation 
of the medical cannabis facility. Each medical cannabis facility shall also provide the above 
information to its business neighbors located within ~ 300 feet of the medical cannabis 
facility. 

Commercial Medical Cannabis Land Use Ordinance; Ordinance 34~2016 - Revised August 16, 2016 Page 22 

63 



fg} llil Consent t&-a to a minimum of at least one quarterly on-site compliance inspection, to be 
conducted by appropriate City officials during regular business hours (Monday - Friday, 
9:00 am - 5:00 pm, excluding holidays) . The applicant shall be required to pay the 
Inspection Fee in effect at that time. 

~ ill Ownerls) or employeels) who makes or will make operational or management 
decisions that directly impact the business shall consent to a background check 
pursuant to Section 19322Ia)(1)(A) of the Business and Professions Code, including 
submitting to the Department of Justice fingerprint Images and related information 
required by the Department of Justice for the purpose of obtaining information as to the 
existence and content of a record of State or Federal convictions and arrests, and 
information as to the existence and content of a record of State and Federal convictions 
and arrests for which the Department of Justice establishes that the person is free on bail 
or on his or her own recognizance, pending trial or appeal. The applicant shall be 
responsible for the costs associated with the required background check. 

iii No Owner or employee who makes or will make operational or management 
decisions that directly impact the business shall have been convicted of an 
offense, or is currently free on bail or on his or her own recognizance pending 
trial or appeal for an offense, that is substantially related to the qualifications, 
functions, or duties of the business or profession for which the application is 
made, including but not be limited to, the following: 

IA) A felony conviction for the illegal possession for sale. sale, 
manufacture, transportation, or cultivation of a controlled substance; 

(8) A violent felony conviction, as specified in subdivision Ic) of Section 667.5 of 
the Penal Code. 

(e) A serious felony conviction, as specified in subdivision Ic) of Section 1192.7 
of the Penal Code. 

(0) A felony conviction involving fraud, deceit, or embezzlement. 

~ !JlCompliance with the prOVisions of the Medical Cannabis Regulation and Safety Act. 

Ik) Inventory Tracking System. All permittees shall purchase, implement and maintain 
updates to the inventory tracking software from the City'S inventory tracking software 
system IITSS) provider. A permittee must have at least one individual Owner or 
contractor who successfully completes all training necessary to properly use the ITSS as a 
System Administrator. The System Administrator may also designate specific inventory 
tracking system userls) that have successfully completed all ITSS training required to 
access the system under the direct control of the System Administrator. The System 

Commercial Medical CannabiS Land Use Ordjnanc~; Ordinance 348-2016 - Revised August 16, 2016 Page 13 

64 



Administrator and any designated users shall participate in all ongoing and continuing 
training as required to stay current with the software. 

iii Inventory Tracking. Permittees shall. at all times. maintain current inventory 
information on the City's ITSS. 

(10) Performance Standards for all MCCLUO Cultivation Operations: 

(a) No surface water withdrawals shall be allowed as part of any cultivation operations. 

(b) No Timberland Conversion Permits or Exemptions as approved by the California 
Department of Forestry and Fire Protection (CAL-FIRE) shall be used to facilitate the 
cultivation of medical cannabis. 

(c) The area of cannabis cultivation shall be located as shown on the application site plan, set 

back at least 50 feet from any property line, and GOO 1000 feet from any School. Cannabis 

cultivation is declared to be development, subject to compliance with Section 17.30.110, 

Environmentally Sensitive Habitat Area's (ESHA's). For purposes of this section, where 

enhanced, reduced, or modified watercourse or wetland setbacks have been agreed to by 

the operator and the RWQCB under enrollment pursuant to NCRWQB Order No. 2015-0023 

and/or preparation of a Water Resources Protection Plan, these may control and supersede 

any setback applied pursuant to Section 17.30.110. 

(d) Maintain enrollment in Tier 1, 2 or 3, certification with the North Coast Regional Water 

Quality Control Board Order No. 2015-0023, if applicable, or any substantially equivalent 
rule that may be subsequently adopted by the City of Rio Dell or other responsible agency. 

(e) For cultivation areas for which no enrollment pursuant to NCRWQB Order No. 2015·0023, is 

required by that Order, compliance with the standard conditions applicable to all Tier 1 
dischargers. 

(f) The storage or use of any fertilizer, pesticide, fungicide, rodenticide, or herbicide shall be in 
compliance with the manufacture's recommendations and regulations administered by the 

State Department of Pesticide Regulation. Hazardous materials and wastes from 
agricultural businesses are regulated by the Humboldt County Environmental Health 
Division, which administers the Hazardous Materials program as one of the Certified Unified 
Program Agencies (CUPA). This includes the application, inspection, enforcement, and 

reporting under the program requirements and standards set by the California 
Environmental Protection Agency (CaIEPA). 

l. 
Commercial Medicol Cannabis Land Use Ordinance; Ordinance 348·2016 - Revised August 16, 2016 Page 14 

65 



(g) Trucked water shall not be allowed as the primary water source. Water is to be sourced 

locally (on-site), except for emergencies. For purposes of this provision, "emergency" is 

defined as: "a sudden, unexpected occurrence demanding immediate action." 

(h) Carbon filter fans or equivalent superior filters/scrubbers shall be required to miRimize aF 

eliminate odor discharges to neighboring properties from cultivation and processing 

facilities. 

(i) A Waste Management/Disposal Plan shall be submitted describing any produced wastes, 

including by-products, recycling, reusing, recovery, storage, diversion and handling and 

disposal. 

(j) Those cultivators using artificial lighting for mixed-light cultivation shall shield greenhouses 

so that little to no light escapes. light shall not escape at a level that is visible from 

neighboring properties between sunset and sunrise. Should the City receive complaints 

that the lighting is out of alignment or not complying with these standards, within ten (10) 

working days of receiving written notification that a complaint has been filed, the applicant 

shall submit written verification that the lights' shielding and alignment has been repaired, 

inspected and corrected as necessary. 

(k) Generators are only allowed as an emergency back-up power source. The noise produced 

by a generator used for cannabis cultivation shall not be audible from neighboring 

residences. The decibel level for generators at the property line shall be no more than 60 

decibels. 

(I) Fuel shall be stored and handled in compliance with applicable state and local laws and 

regulations, and in such a way that no spillage occurs. 

~lhe fatUity 51=1311 be alarm8a \VitA 3R awdit;,le iRterier 3ReijeF exterisr slieRt alan:A system, 
wAles5 waived fer eKteAtJatiAg CirEuA1staRces b,t tJ:.e PlaRAiAg CSFRFRissisA tf:lat is aperateel 
aflEC mSAitsFeei by a recogRize.:j se€l::Jrit)' C9FRpaR'I , eeen::red acceptable 13"{ tl=te PlaRRiRg 
CammlssiaR .. AllY CA3Rge iR tRe sec~Fltv c8mllaR~· sRali Be s~ej ect te tRe allllFa\'al af tile 
Cit', PAaAager SF his itesigRee. All CtiFFeRt (BAtaet iRferR=latisA regartAiAg the medical 
eaRR3bls faci lity's secllFity EemllaR'f sllall ee IlFeyiElea te Ille City MaRageF ElF ElesigAee. 
Provision hos been required as part of all cannabis CUP applications. See Section 
17.30.195(e). 

~.!ml Comply with any special conditions applicable to that permit or parcel which may be 

imposed as a condition of the required Conditional Use Permit. 

Commercial Medical Cannabis Land Use O,dinonc~; Ordinance 348p l016 - Revised August 16, 2016 Page IS 

66 



(11) Employee Performance Standards for Cultivation and Processing Activities: 

(a) Pursuant to the MMRSA, Health and Safety Code section 19322(a)(9), an applicant seeking a 

cultivation license shall "provide a statement declaring the applicant is an 'agricultural 
employer: as defined in the Alatorre-Zenovich-Dunlap-Berman Agricultural labor Relations 
Act of 1975 (Part 3.5 commencing with Section 1140) of Division 2 of the labor Code), to 

the extent not prohibited by law." 

(b) Cultivators shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations 

governing California Agricultural Employers, which may include: federal and state wage and 

hour laws, CAl/OSHA, OSHA and the California Agricultural labor Relations Act. 

(c) Cultivators engaged in processing shall comply with the following Processing Practices: 

i. Processing operations must be maintained in a clean and sanitary condition including all 

work surfaces and equipment; and 

ii . Processing operations must implement protocols which prevent processing 
contamination and mold and mildew growth on cannabis; and 

iii. Employees handling cannabis in processing operations must have access to facemasks, 
coveralls and gloves in good operable condition as applicable to their job function; and 

iv. Employees must wash hands sufficiently when handling cannabis or use gloves. 

(d) All persons hiring employees to engage in commercial cannabis cultivation and processing 
shall comply with the following Employee Safety Practices: 

i. Cultivation operations and processing operations must implement safety protocols and 
provide all employees with adequate safety training relevant to their specific job 

functions, which may include: 

• Emergency action response planning as necessary; and 

• Employee accident reporting and investigation policies; and 

• Fire prevention; 

• Hazard communication policies, including maintenance of material safety data sheets 
(MSDS); and 

• Materials handling policies; and 

Commercial Medical Cannabis Land Use Ordinance: Ordinance 348-2016 - Revised August 16, 2016 Page 16 

67 



• Job hazard analyses; and 

• Personal protective equipment policies, including respiratory protection. 

ii. Cultivation operations and processing operations must visibly post and maintain an 
emergency contact list which includes at a minimum : 

• Operation manager contacts; and 

• Emergency responder contacts; and 

• Poison control contacts. 

iii. At all times, employees shall have access to safe drinking water and toilets and 
handwashing facilities that comply with applicable federal, state, and local laws and 
regulations. Plumbing facilities and water source must be capable of handling increased 
usage without adverse consequences to neighboring properties or the environment. 

iv. On site-housing provided to employees shall comply with all applicable federal, state, 
and local laws and regulations. 

(e) All cultivators shall, at the time of the application for a cultivation permit, include a 
Processing Plan with all of the following: 

i. Summary of Processing Practices. 

ii. Description of location where processing will occur. 

iii. Estimated number of employees, if any. 

iv. Summary of Employee Safety Practices. 

v. Description of toilet and handwashing facilities. 

vi. vi. Description of plumbing and/or septic system and whether or not the system is 
capable of handling increased usage. 

vii. Description of source of drinking water for employees. 

viii. Description of increased road use resulting from processing and a plan to minimize that 
impact. 

Commercial Medical Cannabis Land Use Ordinance; Ordinance 348·2016 - Revised August 16, 1016 Page 17 

68 



ix. Description of on-site housing, if any. 

(12) Performance Standards for Manufacturing Activities: 

(a) Compliance with CAL/OSHA, OSHA regulations. 

(b) Compliance with State and local building regulations, including the California Building Code 
(CBC) and the California Fire Code (CFC). 

(c) A Security Plan that addresses how the following measures shall be implemented or 
complied with: 

(i) Sec~Hit'l cameras shalt be iAstalleEi 3Ret rTlaiAtaiRed iA geed E9REiitisA, aRe 
blsed iA aA SR gaiAft ffi3RRer \ ... itl:t at least 240 E8REbirreRt Ae~lFs af eligitany r€e9rElea 
daelimeAtalieA iA a fe rmat apIlFe'.ed 11'( I~e PlaAAiRg CemmissieA. T~e eameras s~alllle 
iR I:Ise 24 R8WFS per day, 7 days per weelE. TRe areas ta be severed 15PI ttle S€EblFit'/ 

EaFfteraS sRatl iAeh:lde, llyt are Ret limitea te, ttte pWblie areas, precl?s5iRg areas, sterage 
areas, eFRJjlle'/ee areas, all deers aREI WiRBBWS, 3Rd aRy ether areas as determiRed le lie 
AeeessaFy 11,( t~e PlaRAiAg CemmissiaR. Provision has been required as part of all 
cannabis CUP applications. See Section 17.30.195(e). 

(ii) T~e facility s~all be alan:w:teel v/ith aA abldible iRteriar aRell:!!; eKterieF ,ileAt alaFm 
system, uRless wai'.ed fer eKteA",atiAg eIFE",mstaAsesll.,. t~e PlaRRiRg CemmissieR t~at is 
8J3eFateel aAet meRitaFeEf btl a reeegAlzeEi secwrity eempaRVI Eleemed aeeeptable by t~e 
PlaRAiAg CeR=tmissieA . • 00AY dl3Age iA t~e secyrity E9~paR~f shall be swbjeet te the 
allllFeYaI af ijje Cit'l MaAager sr ~ is aesigRee. All E", rreRt EeRlast iRfsFFRatieA regaraiAg 
the meElieal eaARaliis faeilit·/s ses",rll.,. sempaAY s~a ll ile pre\'ideEi Ie t~e City MaRager 
er aesigRee. Provision has been required as part of all cannabis CUP applications. See 
Section 17.30.195(e). 

{ii4 ill Entrance to the extraction areas and any cannabis storage areas shall be locked at 

all times, and under the control of facility staff. 

M !ill Medical cannabis shall be stored in buildings that are completely enclosed, and in 
a locked vault or safe, or other secured storage structure which is bolted to the floor or 
structure of the premises. 

M (iii) Windows and roof hatches of the premises shall be secured from the inside with 
effective means so as to prevent unauthorized entry, and shall be equipped with latches 
or a similar mechanism that may be released quickly from the inside to allow exit in the 
event of emergency in compliance with all applicable building provisions in the Code. 

Commercial Medical Cannabis Land Use Ordinance; Ordinance 348-2016 .. Revised August 16, 2016 Poge 18 

69 



(d) If using C02 in processing, a professional grade closed-loop CO2 gas extraction system rated 
to a minimum of fifteen thousand (15,000) pounds per square (PSI) is required for every 

vessel in the system. 

(e) Extraction processes shall use a commercially manufactured professional grade closed-loop 
extraction system designed to recover the solvents and built to codes of recognized and 
generally accepted sound engineering practices, such as (i) The American Society of 
Mechanical Engineers (ASME); (ii) American National Standards Institute (ANSI); (iii) 
Underwriters laboratories (Ul); or (iv) The American Society for Testing and Materials 

(ASTM). 

(f) Volatile extraction operations shall occur in a spark-proof, explosion-proof room equipped 

with evacuation fans and lower explosive limit (lEl) detectors. 

(g) Carbon filter fans or equivalent superior filters/scrubbers shall be required to RliRiRlize SF 

eliminate odor discharges to neighboring properties. 

(h) A Waste Management/Disposal Plan shall be submitted describing any produced wastes, 
including by-products, recycling, reusing, recovery, storage, diversion and handling and 

disposal. 

(i) Manufacturers of edibles shall comply with the regulations in the California Health and 
Safety Code, which includes the California Retail Food Code administered by the California 
Department of Health Services - Food and Drug Branch, California Department of Food and 
Agriculture and the County Department of Environmental Health. 

OJ Comply with any special conditions applicable to that permit or parcel which may be 
imposed as a condition of the required Conditional Use Permit. 

(13) Performance Standards for Testing laboratories 

(a) lAe faEil it~' sl1all l3e alarRleEi wilh aR audib le Interisr aRdffi eMterlar ~ alarRl s'/steRl, 
tiRless wai'{eEi fer eKteRt::IatiAg eirCl:lmstaRces llV tt:ae PlaRRiRg C9FAFRissisA tt:tat is operated 
3RfI Al9RitsFed Ii,! a reeegRizes sec .. rit'! cempaR'.; Eleemeel aEee~tab\e i)', the PlaARiAg 
(sRlRlissisR. ,o,RY chaRge iR the seEurit\' E8R1paR'/ sl1all be sllbjeEt ts tile appre'.'al sf IRe ( it'( 
MaAager SF Ris desigAee. All CI:IFFeRt E9Rtact iRf.erFAatieR regardiRg tRe mesieal caRAat;,js 
faeilit\'·s secijrip,' (eMpaR'1 sl:aall be provided to the Cit', MaRager SF desigRee. Provision has 
been required as part of all cannabis CUP applications. See Section 17.30.19S(e). 

{&} t!l Entrance to the lab area and any cannabis storage areas shall be locked at all times, and 

under the control of facility staff. 

Commtrciol Medical Cannabis Land Use Ordinance; Ordinance 348-2016 - Revised August 16, 2016 Page 19 

70 



W!hl Medical cannabis shall be stored in a secured and locked room, vault or safe, or other 
secured storage structure which is bolted to the floor or structure of the premises. 

{6} W. Windows and roof hatches of the premises shall be secured from the inside with 
effective means so as to prevent unauthorized entry, and shall be equipped with latches or 
a similar mechanism that may be released quickly from the inside to allow exit in the event 
of emergency in compliance with all applicable building provisions in the California Building 
Code. 

{e} {Q1 All laboratory testing facilities shall comply with Sections 19341 through 19345 of the 
California Business and Professions Code. 

{f:I ~ Comply with any special conditions applicable to that permit or parcel which may be 

imposed as a condition of the required Conditional Use Permit. 

(14) Perf9r~aAEe StaAdards fer QlspeAsaries 

(a) TJ:le fadlit,' sl=taU be alarmed with 3R aUBible iRteriar aRd e)Eterier afar", 5\'stem, YAless 
wili 'tee fer eliteRuating eirEumstaRees 13'( tile PlaRAiAg CemmlssisA t!:lat is sperated aAe 
mSRitsred b't' a rees@Rilee securi ty EsmpaR'I, eeemee aeceptal3le 13'1' the PlaAAiAg 
~mis5isA . /'.A}· ehaAge iA the seeurit')· es mpaR't' shall l3e sublett ts the apprs~al sf the ( it'! 
MaAager sr his eesi@nee. All current EB ntatt iAfsrmatisn regard ing the meeieal eaAnabis 
faeility's seE",rit'! esmpan'l s!:la ll be prslJieeli ts the (It'( Manager SF lIeslgAee. p."6l1is~n hils 
fleeR t=e'lw;rerl as ~9rt eJf'lU 69RIUJI1JS ,UP fIfIPIi'tlgQI"I&. See Secfi9R J 7.~Q. 1gile}. 

(b) SeEurity cameras shall be insta llell and mainlainell In g9ae eanllltisA, ane usell in an SA 
geffig manner with at least 249 eaAEllrreAt hSllrs af lIigita ll,! retsrlleli IIOetolmeAtatiaA In a 
~aF",a t appreved by tl=te PlaRRiRg CefflR=tissiaR. T~e E3ffi€raS shall be fA yse 24 I':tOYFS per eJa'l, 
+-days per "feel" Tl=t e areas t9 Be caverse tiy tAe seeurity eaI=Rer3S sl:!a ll iReI~g e , byt are Ret 
liMitea te, t~e pl:Jblie areas~ ~ reEes5iAg areas, sterage areas, emj:lleyee areas~ all EieeFs aAEi 
winetews, aRS aAY etf;wer areas as deteFFRiAea t9 be AeeeSS3FY by t~e PlaRRiAg CBRlFRfssieR. 
PrSWS;SR ASS seeR rer,wirerl 9S paR 9jf flU £9RRflbls 'UP flHIi£fltJSRS. See SeGf.J9R 
17.i(},19i(e). 

te) eRtraRce te tRe aAY eaRRa~i5 5t9Fage areas shall be lacked at all times, aREi 'l:JAEier tR e 
ceRtFel af faeility staM. 

(d) Me!! ital eaAAabis shall be stsFeE! in a setll re!! aAlllsEkeE! rssm, ,'atollt s r safe, ar sther 
settolrell stsrage stFllettolre whleh is balteE! ts the flssr sr strllttlOFe sflhe premises. 

(8 ) WiRdows aRa feef I::latehes af tRe preFAis€s sRall be s8cl::Jfea frsFR tRe iAside \\:r jtk eUeeti'Ie 
meaRS sa as tB preveRt t:lAautl:lerized €Rtf)', aRS st:.aJl be e(tl:J ippeEi Y,'itR latcRes SF a similar 

Commercial Medical Cannabis Land Use Ordinance; Ordinance 348·2016 - Revised August 16. 2016 Page 20 

71 



FRec~aA is~ that mal' be releasee ql:lieklv flem tf:ae iAsiEfe te allew eHit iA tl:1e eveRt sf 
emergeRE'/ iA £oFR~ liaRee '.vitI:. an aJ3plicable blitieiRg PF9'Jisi9RS iR the Ceeie. 

(f) Ns elis~eRs iRg IseatisR fer tile tslleai ... e sllall be s~eR bet'lleeR tile lIellrs sf 8:gg ~.m . aReI 
9:gg a .m. S A aR', giveR aa\'. 

(E) OAI'( EI~a l ifieBpatleAts, as elefiAeEl iA SeaieR 1139;1.7 eftl:le Healtll aRe Safety (sEle are 
alieweEf iR dispeAsaries. 

(I:a) Medisal e3RAat:Jis may Ret Be iAf:taleel, 5MBkedt eateR, iAgesteFJ, vapeG, eF 9tReIV/ise lIseEi SF 
CE)RsI:IFRed at the preMises aRs/-er IscatieR . 

(0 TJ:.e sales sf pipes, iRCh::ffJiRg "vater pi,:aes aAd atke, paraflherRalia are prat:.ii3iteS. 

ti) IA aElElltiBA te tl:le lab eliAS FeEllliFemeRts ageaiaA 19347 shlle 811siAess aAEI PrefessiaRs 
(eEle, all meElieat eaAAabis slla ll be llaekageEl iA aA e~aEllle el:l ilElpraef eSAtaiAeF wlliell sllall 
J:je aeeefAf;l3Aiea b'I a leaflet Sf iRseR tAat clearl·, states tRe kllla'IJiAg: 

Il) Tl:le esmplele legal Aame af t l:le qllalilieEl ~atieRt ""l:Ia will be USiAg tl:le meelieal 
eaRRabis; 

(Ii) Tile Rame, aeldre5s aRB aA sit e laRel liRe te l e~lI9Re Rumber af tile Ells~eRsary; 

(iii) TAe amaYRt af Medical eaARabis iR tRe EaAtaiRer; 

(i ... ) Tile Aame sf tile atteAeliRg fll:lysieiaR reeammeAeliRg tile use af meElieal eaARabis fer 
tl:le lIualilieB ~at i eRt ; 

{vI Tile Elate tile meElieai eaRRabis was flFayiEled; 

( ... i) A list of tile ellemieals aReI 9F substaAEes tllat weFe IIsed eluFiAg tRe flFaeessiRg af 
tl:le FReelieal eaARaf:)is; 

(, .. ii ) All Reeessap,' l:Iealtll aAEI safety warAiAgs, iREtuEiiRg, but Ret limited Ie elireaieR tRat 
tl:Je Medical eaARala is be stared iA a cleaR 3Ad dFY f)laee aREi awt af the reaet. af €hHdreAj 
af!d 

(viii) A statemeAt ttlat the City sf Ria gel! ReitRet 'lIarraAts ReF guar3Rtees tl:le q\:lality SF 
safe~ 9f the FRediEal eaAAai3is eSRtaiAed tRereiA . 

(k) All edible meEiieal eaRRabis IlrSQIIE'ts selEi witlliA tile (it.,. af Ria Gell sllall be plaeeel iR 
epaEll:le pad(agiRg, withe~t ~Rotes 9r irTlages af fead SA the label. PachagiRg tRat mat(es tl=te 
eEliole fl rsElua altFaai ... e ta ellllelreR eF imitates e3AElv is Ret alleweel. EElible meElleal 
£aRAaiiis pFed~et5 snail Ret imitate c9A1~eFEiall'l prsQl:lced gesEts marlEeteet te ERileireA. Tl=te 

Commercial M~dical Cannabis Land Use Ordinance; Ordinance 348·2016 - Revised August 16, 2016 PageZl 

72 



eaill ie preal,la ml,lst Ile aEEempaRleEl Il ', a leaflet er IAsert t llat eiearl.,. stat es tile 
seWFEe! pFeyit'ler eftlle feeeill reeiwa ieR iA a!la it leR ta all aftlle iAfaFFAat ieR rel'lw irea ll'( 
~llseEtle R 17 . 3Q.Q!l~ ( 14)(i ) . 

(t) A SigA sl:lall ae psstes iR a c8Aspin.9YS lecatioR iAsiele the premises aEivisiAg tl:l€ fetiswiRg: 
"8eth the sale ef eaARallis aRB the aiversleR ef EaRRallis fer AeAFAeBiEal pWFpeses are 
':ielatisRs af state 'aw. Tt=te lise af E3RRabis ma'i iFRpair a peFS9R's ab ilitll ta sperate a ma~9 F 

vel:liele SF Rea"..,. fJlaeh iRep(_ l eiteriRg at t~e leeatioA sf a meEfical caRAa~ts celleeti'Je fer aA 
illegal pl,lFllese is IlFell ill it eall". CalifeFAia PeRal Ceae SeaieR 647(ll j. Til is Ee ll eal~e is 
reglsterea if' 3eEeraaA£e witR t,Re la'lI5 eftRe £tate af (aliferRia aAd the City ef RiB Dell." 

1M! DlsseAsaries 51:1311 tlae 19Eated at least IQgg Jest freuR aA'J S£t:U~81. 

~ (14) Term of Conditional Use Permit; Inspections, 

(a) Any Conditional Use Permit issued pursuant to this section shall expire after one (1) year 

after date of issuance, and on the anniversary date of such issuance each year thereafter, 

unless the required compliance inspections have been conducted and the permitted site 

has been found to comply with all conditions of approval. 

(b) If the inspector or other City official determines that the site does not comply with the 
conditions of approval, the inspector shall serve the permit holder with a written statement 
identifying the items not in compliance, and the action that the permit holder may take to 
cure the non-compliance, or file an appeal within ten (10) days of the date that the written 
statement is delivered to the permit holder, Personal delivery or mailing the written 

statement to the mailing address listed on the application by regular mail, plus three (3) 
days after date of mailing, shall constitute delivery. The permit holder may request a 
reinspection to determine whether or not the permit holder has cured all issues of non
compliance. Failure to request reinspection or to cure any items of noncompliance shall 

terminate the Conditional Use Permit and license, immediately upon the expiration of any 
appeal period, or final determination of the appeal if an appeal has been timely filed. 

(c) The City shall notify any state license authority, as defined by the MMRSA, whenever the 
Conditional Use Permit and license has been revoked or terminated. 

f1i} (15) Appeal of Annual Inspection Determination 

Within ten (10) business days after delivery of the statement of non-compliance, the 
determination by the inspector that the site is or is not in compliance may be appealed by any 
interested party to the Planning Commission, The appeal shall be made, in writing, on a form 
provided by the City. The fee for filing the appeal is based on the adopted fee schedule in effect 
at the time of the appeal. 

Commercial Medicol CannabiS Land Use Ordinance; Ordinance 348·2016 - Revised August 16, 2016 Page 22 

13 



(a) The appeal shall be heard by the Planning Commission within thirty (30) days following the 
filing of the appeal. The Planning Commission shall render a written ruling on the appeal 
within three (3) business days following the hearing. 

(b) The decision of the Planning Commission may be appealed to the City Council in accordance 
with Section 17.35.050 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code. If a timely appeal to the City Council 
is not filed, the ruling by the Planning Commission shall be final. 

Section 2. Severability 

If any provision of the ordinance is invalidated by any court of competent jurisdiction, the 
remaining provisions shall not be affected and shall continue in full force and effect. 

Section 3. limitation of Actions 

Any action to challenge the validity or legality of any provision of this ordinance on any grounds 
shall be brought by court action commenced within ninety (90) days of the date of adoption of 
this ordinance. 

Section 4. Effective Date 

This ordinance becomes effective thirty (30) days after the date of its approval and adoption. 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the forgoing Ordinance was duly introduced at a regular meeting of the 
City Council of the City of Rio Dell on September 6, 2016 and furthermore the forgoing 
Ordinance was passed, approved and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the 
City of Rio Dell, held on the , 2016 by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

Frank Wilson, Mayor 

Commercial Medical Cannabis Land Use Ordinance; Ordinance 348-2016 - Revised August 16,2016 Page 23 

74 



ArrEST: 

I, Karen Dunham, City Clerk for the City of Rio Dell, State of California, hereby certify the above 
and foregoing to be a full, true and correct copy of Ordinance No. 348-2016 which was passed, 
approved and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Rio Dell, held on 
the ,2016. 

Karen Dunham, City Clerk, City of Rio Dell 

Commercial Medical Cannabis Land Use Ordinance; Ordinance 348·2016 - Revised August 16, 2016 Page 24 

75 


